
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Tuesday, 14 March 2023 
 
To:   Members of the MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and Appropriate 

Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority to be held at South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ, 
on: Wednesday, 22 March 2023 at 11.00 am for the purpose of transacting the business 
set out in the agenda. 
 
 

 
 
Martin Swales 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service  
 
 
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

This meeting will be streamed live or subsequent broadcast via the Mayoral Combined 
Authority’s website. 
 
You should be aware that the Mayoral Combined Authority is a Data Controller under the 
Data Protection Act 2018.  Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Mayoral Combined Authority’s published policy. 
 
By entering the meeting room, you are consenting to be filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Member Distribution 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) Independent Member 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Cllr Sophie Castledine-Dack Rotherham MBC 
Councillor Austen White City of Doncaster Council 
David Phillips Independent Member 
 



 

 

 
MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 22 March 2023 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue:  South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, 
S1 2BQ 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 

 

Morning Session 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  Chair  

2.   Urgent Items/ Announcements  Chair  

3.   Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public 
and Press  

Chair  

4.   Declarations of Interest by any Members  Chair  

5.   Reports from and Questions by Members  Chair  

6.   Questions from Members of the Public  Chair  

7.   Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held 
on 25 January 2023  

Chair 5 - 22 

8.   2021/22 Accounts - External Audit Update  Hassan 
Rohimun 

23 - 98 

9.   2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  Lisa Mackenzie 99 - 106 

10.   Internal Audit Reports 

 Governance 

 Risk Management  

 Core Financial Controls 

 Supplier Resilience Follow Up 

Lisa Mackenzie 107 - 174 

11.   Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker  Lisa Mackenzie 175 - 180 

12.   Annual Internal Audit Report including Draft Head 
of Internal Audit Opinion  

Emily Mayne 181 - 200 

13.   Risk Management  Claire James 201 - 218 

14.   Transport Risk Working Group  Rhys Jarvis Verbal 

Date of next meeting:   Wednesday, 22 March 2023 at 1.00 pm 
At:  South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ  



This page is intentionally left blank



MCA - AUDIT, STANDARDS AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
WEDNESDAY, 25 JANUARY 2023 AT 11.00 AM 
 
SOUTH YORKSHIRE MCA, 11 BROAD STREET WEST, 
SHEFFIELD, S1 2BQ 
 

 
 
Present: 
 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Cllr Sophie Castledine-Dack Rotherham MBC 
David Phillips Independent Member 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Ken Richardson (Reserve) Barnsley MBC 
 
In Attendance: 
 
  
Steve Davenport Director of Law and Governance SYMCA Executive Team 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 

Officer 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Mike Thomas Assistant Director of Finance & 
Deputy s73 Officer 

SYMCA Executive Team 

Lynne Sutton Health and Safety Advisor SYMCA Executive Team 
John Dowie Executive Director of 

Infrastructure and Place 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Pat Beijer Director of Public Transport 
Development 

SYMCA Executive Team 

Richard Sulley Net Zero Project Director SYMCA Executive Team 
Lyndsey Whitaker Senior Economic Policy 

Manager 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Chris Coleman Light Rail Programme Director SYMCA Executive Team 
 
Lisa Mackenzie   
Ellen Hinsley (Minute Taker)  

 

 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts Barnsley MBC 
 
 
94 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed attendees to the meeting. 

  
Apologies were noted as above. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

95 Urgent Items/Announcements 
 

 None. 
 

96 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press 
 

 Members noted that Item 23, Contract Procedure Rules Breach and Suspected 
Instances of Fraud Report, was restricted from the public. It was agreed that 
the webcast would be paused when this item was discussed. There were no 
members of the public in attendance. 
 

97 Declarations of Interest by any Members 
 

 None. 
 

98 Reports from and Questions by Members 
 

 None. 
 

99 Questions from Members of the Public 
 

 None. 
 

100 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 19 October 2022 
 

 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2022 be 
agreed as a true record, with the amendment that Cllr Auckland was not in 
attendance.  
  
Completed actions were noted.  
  
Regarding ongoing actions, the Committee noted that:  

• Amendments to the Committee Terms of Reference would commence 
from April 2023. 

• An update would be provided on risks posed by ownership of the Tram 
network during this meeting.  

• The closure of Doncaster Sheffield Airport was now contained in the risk 
register. The Chair recommended that management of the impacts of 
the closure which cannot be prevented could also be included in the 
register.  

• ACTION: Head of Corporate Governance - The Chair requested that a 
date be allocated to circulating an Assurance Map to members.  

  
The Chair welcomed actions which had been taken on the risk register.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the Action Log. 
 

101 Health and Safety Update 
 

 A Health and Safety update report was presented. It included information on 
plans for emergency evacuations at interchanges, and it was noted that mock 
evacuations had taken place, and a request for more resource would be made 

Page 6



 

to MCA executive leadership to support risk management in this area.  
  
It was confirmed that Doncaster Interchange was not contained in the report 
because it was managed by a private company and not the MCA.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

102 External Audit Report on 2021/22 Accounts 
 

 The report of the external auditors on the 2021/22 South Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive Accounts was presented, noting that:  

• No matters of significant concern had been raised, and the value for 
money position was unqualified.  

• Group accounts for the MCA would be reported to the Committee in 
March.  

  
It was confirmed that the list of outstanding queries was now shorter than in the 
report, and remaining queries would be resolved soon.  
  
Officers noted that they disputed the external auditor’s control weakness 
assertion around year-end audit approvals due to the existing controls that are 
in place. 
  
Pressures on the national audit market, leading to the delay in signing off the 
2021/22 Accounts and the subsequent pressure on resource planning, were 
noted. 
  
The Committee encouraged stronger communication between the MCA, 
Committee and External Auditors in order to resolve the ongoing issues.  
  
The Chair welcomed receiving a further update on this at the March Board 
meeting.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

103 Mid-Year Treasury Management Strategy Report 
 

 The Mid-Year Treasury Management Strategy was presented. The report, 
which had previously been presented to the MCA Board, noted the 
performance against the prudential indicators and cash management activity. 
  
It was noted that high cash balances and rising interest rates had generated 
windfall additional income so far during the year. This had contributed to the 
financial health of the organisation, and also supported the implementation of a 
set of cost-of-living measures for residents.  
  
Officers noted that a year-end outturn report would be presented to the 
Committee at its June session. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

104 2023/24 Draft Treasury Management Strategy 

Page 7



 

 
 The 2023/24 Draft Treasury Management Strategy was presented. It noted 

that: 

• Environmental and Social Governance indicators rating are now a 
consideration for the MCA in the management of its investment portfolio. 

• Qatar had been removed from the list of countries which the MCA would 
invest with.  

• Further work would soon be underway with Local Authority partners to 
implement an expanded training and skills register for Committee 
members.  

• The MCA was in negotiations regarding its borrowing limit with HM 
Treasury and was awaiting written confirmation of this. 

• The MCA currently had large cash balances due to capital programme 
slippage, but this position was expected to unwind over the next year 
with cash balances dropping to more usual levels 

• The MCA and SYPTE were holding more loans than needed, including a 
number of Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO) loans. This position 
would begin to unwind in the next year as over £50m of loans were 
retired. 

  
  
Officers noted that the proposed authorised limit for borrowing had been 
reduced significantly on the previous year. This recognised the approach to the 
longer-term investment of devolution monies and the agreed approach to 
borrowing for investment across the MCA and the four South Yorkshire local 
authorities. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

105 Assurance Framework 
 

 A report on the annual review of the MCA’s Assurance Framework was 
presented. The Assurance Framework sets out the governance structures of 
the organisation for making investment decisions.  
  
An annual review is undertaken of the Framework, and the current review was 
taking longer than expected due to the need to incorporate:  

•       The dissolution of SYPTE 

•       The evolution of the Local Enterprise Partnerships 

•       Updates to the Government’s Green Book 

•       New requirements on the gateway review of gainshare funding 
Officers noted that in addition to the proposed changes work had been 
undertaken internally to help with the pace and quality of schemes under 
development with: 

•       The creation of a Programme Management Office team, which were 
supporting the quality of funding applications coming from Local 
Authority partners 

•       A new Programme Board having been established to overview 
programme performance and project officer support for programmes 

  
Conversations were ongoing with Officers and Local Authorities to incorporate 
other improvements to the Assurance Process, and the Committee’s feedback 

Page 8



 

was welcomed.  
  
ACTION: Head of Assurance and Evaluation - The Chair noted that the “non-
executive Audit and Risk Advisory Panel” needed removing, and reference to 
the “Transport Working Group” including. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

106 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 
 

 The 2022/23 Internal Audit Report was presented. 
  
The Internal Auditors noted that: 

• Approximately 72% of the work plan had been completed 

• They intended to present a draft final report to the March meeting of the 
Committee, and the final Audit Opinion to the June meeting 

• A handover process would be undertaken with the incoming Internal 
Auditors 

  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

107 Internal Audit Recommendations Tracker 
 

 A report on the Annual Governance Review Process was presented, which 
noted an outstanding action on supplier resilience, which had been impacted by 
an ongoing organisational review. A team who would be tasked with 
implementing this work had now been recruited.  
  
RESOLVED: to note progress against Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker. 
 

108 Internal Audit Reports 
 

 Two reports of the Internal Auditors were presented regarding: 

• A review of work done as part of the Asset Management Audit, showing 
that some aspects of completing this work were still ongoing. 

• A review of the implementation of the MCA’s Net Zero ambitions.  
  
Board members requested further detail on aspirations for income generation 
by the MCA. The aspiration was that this would come from the Advanced 
Manufacturing Park Technology Centre, and at Interchanges, where post-
pandemic changes to retail was resulting in reduced income.  
  
It was noted that an overarching strategy was needed to effectively map work 
done against Net Zero targets alongside Government funding, changing 
national frameworks, and ongoing changes to the MCA. A high risk rating was 
noted as a result of this. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

109 Net Zero Programme Update 
 

 A presentation was given on the Net Zero Programme, which covered: 

Page 9



 

• A noted reduction in carbon emissions in the region 

• That transport was the area of the MCA’s work which presented the 
most challenging sector to decarbonise 

• An overarching need to reduce energy demand and increase energy 
efficiency 

• That South Yorkshire is a net importer of power  

• Large scale electrification was needed, but also support for high intensity 
industries which aren’t able to electrify entirely 

• Examples in the logic model for the Net Zero Programme, including 
transport decarbonisation, and housing retrofit 

• The 2023/24 work programme, including growing the staff team 
delivering this work, data and pathway development, and programme 
development to align MCA targets with the Mayor’s ambitions and 
government mandates on nature recovery.  

  
ACTION: Net Zero Project Director to share slides used with the Committee. 
  
Members asked about progress on implementing vehicle charging 
infrastructure. A response was given that the MCA was looking in to applying 
for new Government funding to support this, but that a core Net Zero target was 
creating an environment of fewer cars, driven less often, with higher use of 
public transport. 
  
It was noted that meeting Net Zero ambitions would require a great deal of 
individual action, but that many of these actions have co-benefits for 
individuals, such as more energy efficient homes and less congestion on roads. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the update. 
 

110 Transport Working Group Update 
 

 A verbal update was given on the Transport Working Group, noting key risks in 
this are as being:  

• Reductions in bus patronage  

• Lack of ongoing support and funding from Government for buses  

• The closure of Doncaster Sheffield Airport 
  
RESOLVED: to note the update. 
 

111 Preparation for Tram Risk 
 

 A presentation was given on preparation for the risks presented by the MCA’s 
ownership of the tram network.  
  
That the tram concession was due to end in March 2024, at which point the 
cost and revenue risks associated with the running the network would revert to 
the MCA. 
  
The ongoing workstreams ensuring the success and seamless transfer of 
SYSL to NewCo were covered, including: 

• Recruiting key skills and competencies to manage the mobilisation and 
transfer 

Page 10



 

• Maintenance of both project and corporate risk registers and issues log 

• Development of a key communications and stakeholder plan  

• Capturing and assessing the data and intelligence from Stagecoach as 
part of SYMCA due diligence.  

• Obtaining legal advice regarding setting up the wholly owned arm’s 
length subsidiary company (NewCo) 

• People management  

• Setting up a new systems and processes, including a new retailing 
system  

  
An overview of controls being put in place to manage risks was given, 
including:  

• Development of a mobilisation plan to ensure a seamless transfer in to 
NewCo in March 2024.  

• Targeted recruitment to ensure sufficient mobilisation of key staff 
resource 

• Measures to prevent adverse impact on customer demand during asset 
renewal  

• Providing an attractive and reliable customer offer to offset the impact of 
covid on demand 

  
Board members asked about plans for pension provision upon transfer, and a 
response was given that officers were working closely with the HR team and 
will involve specialist pension advisors in due course to assess and advise on 
pension obligations associated with the TUPE transfer. ACTION: Programme 
Director, Light Rail to share slides used with the Committee. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the update. 
 

112 Risk Management Update 
 

 A report on risk management was presented.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

113 Governance Improvement Plan Update 
 

 A report on the Governance Improvement Plan was presented.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

114 Annual Governance Review Process 
 

 A report on the Annual Governance Review Process was presented, noting that 
an ongoing review was taking place regarding the effectiveness of internal 
systems at MCA, which would allow the 2022/23 Governance Improvement 
Plan to be more specific and targeted. More findings on this work would be 
presented to the Board its March meeting.  
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

115 Work Plan 

Page 11



 

 
 The Committee Work Plan for 2022/23 was presented.  

  
RESOLVED: to note the Work Plan. 
 

116 RESTRICTED: Contract Procedure Rules Breach and Suspected 
Instances of Fraud Report 
 

 A report outlining Contract Procedure Rules Breach and Suspected Instances 
of Fraud was presented.  
  
The MCA had been made aware of a suspected case of fraud by a procured 
provider of Adult Education Budget (AEB) funding. An internal review and an 
external counter fraud investigation had been undertaken, which showed 
suspected occurrences of fraud in the claims submitted to the MCA. Ofsted, the 
ESFA and the police had all been notified.  
  
Following an internal review into the resourcing of AEB activity, the MCA had 
committed to recruiting more compliance officers to support identification of 
irregularities to supplement other audit activity.  
  
A second instance of concern had been raised with regard to suspected 
misuses of MCA funding by a recipient of business investment grants. The 
issue was referred to the internal auditor who undertook an investigation, but 
found no instances of fraud. The Internal Auditor made a number of 
recommendations around business processes, which had been implemented 
by the MCA. 
  
RESOLVED: to note the report. 
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 12



 

Audit, Standards & Risk Committee  
 
Action Log from 25 January 2023  
 
 
Open and Recently Completed Actions 

 
Meeting 

Date 
Minute 

No 
Action Action Owner Update Status 

25/01/2023 100 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting 
held on 19 October 2022  
 
Head of Corporate Governance - The Chair 
requested that a date be allocated to circulating an 
Assurance Map to members.  

 

C James Due to be circulated 
September 2023. 

Complete 
(Minute no. 

71 will 
remain on 
the Action 
Log until 

circulated.) 
25/01/2023 105 Assurance Framework  

 
Head of Assurance and Evaluation - The Chair 
noted that the “non-executive Audit and Risk 
Advisory Panel” needed removing, and reference to 
the “Transport Working Group” including.  

 

L Whitaker The Framework has been 
updated to include these 
amendments and was 
presented to the MCA 
Board on 6 March.   

Complete 

25/01/23 109 Net Zero Programme Update  
 
Net Zero Project Director to share slides used with 
the Committee.  
 

R Sulley Circulated on 25 January.  Complete 

25/01/2023 111 Preparation for Tram Risk  
 

Programme Director, Light Rail to share slides used 
with the Committee.  

 

C Coleman Circulated on 25 January.  Complete 

P
age 13



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

19/10/2022 81 Terms of Reference Review  
 
Minute: 
 
The Committee recommended the following 
amendments to the reviewed Terms of Reference:  

• At 3.2 to update the language of “External 
Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter” to 
“Auditors Annual Report”, and to include an ISA 
260 Audit Results Report.  
• At 3.4 to specify which review of internal audit 
is being referred to.  
• To expand 3.7 to include specific controls and 
names of reports.  
• To include a minimum number of reports which 
will be provided to the Committee.  
• That the Chair will provide an annual report to 
the Committee.  
 

ACTION – Head of Corporate Governance: to 
make the above amendments to the reviewed 
Terms of Reference. 
 

C James The Terms of Reference 
will be amended as part of 
the work to update the 
Constitution. Due to 
commence in April 2023. 

Ongoing 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 
Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
create and circulate an Assurance Map to Members.  
 

C James Under development in 
conjunction with Executive 
Leadership Team. Due to 
be circulated September 
2023.  

Ongoing 

 
 
 

P
age 14



 

Completed Actions 
 
Meeting 

Date 
Minute 

No 
Action Action Owner Update Status 

19/10/2022 86 Risk Management Monitoring Report  
 
Minute: 
 
More detail was asked on what risk was posed by 
the closure of Doncaster Sheffield Airport. It was 
noted that an issue log may be more appropriate for 
logging items such as this; Though it had occupied a 
significant amount of officer time and was politically 
sensitive, it didn’t pose an immediate risk to the 
operations or financial health of the organisation.  
 
ACTION: Executive Director Finance & 
Investment - to reconsider how Doncaster 
Sheffield Airport is presented in terms of risk 
management. 

G Sutton A new corporate risk has 
been added. See agenda 
item 19: Risk Management 
Monitoring Report. 
 
 

Complete 

19/10/2022 86 Risk Management Monitoring Report  
 
Minute: 
 
The Committee requested more information on risk 
trends, and how risks related to public transport 
could be flagged as financial risks also. It was 
confirmed that the management system allows risks 
to be flagged by theme, and that a report on a 
particular theme of risk, e.g. financial, could be 
produced.  
 
ACTION – Head of Corporate Governance: More 
information on trends in risks, and specific 

C James Risk Reports are continuing 
to evolve. Agenda item 19: 
Risk Management Update 
contains a dashboard report 
and risk registers of 
Directorate level risks which 
includes public transport 
finance related risk.  

Complete 

P
age 15



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

public transport finance related risks, to be 
provided to the Committee. 

19/10/2022 84 Strengthening Corporate Governance 
 
Minute:  
 
The recent decision taken by the MCA to return the 
tram system back into public operation presented 
high risks. Regular updates on this were requested 
by the committee. 
 
ACTION – Head of Corporate Governance: 
Regular updates to be provided on risk 
management for the tram system to be provided 
to the committee. 
 

C James Covered in agenda item 18 
of the 25 January meeting. 
Further updates will be 
provided as the situation 
progresses.  

Complete  

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 
Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
review the methodology behind the Annual 
Governance Review (ie, a report formed from 
interviews with Committee Members).  
 

C James See agenda item 21.  Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 
Minute: Head of Corporate Governance to add a 
session for the Committee to review its Terms of 
Reference.  
 

C James Included at agenda item 10. Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

C James Added to the January 
workplan. 

Complete 

P
age 16



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to add 
a session on Performance Management.  
 
 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 
Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance plan a 
session on the Assurance and Accountability 
Framework in January 2023 so members can 
comment on it during its creation.  
 

C James Added to agenda for 
January. Lead officer 
informed.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 
Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
investigate splitting the March workload into two 
separate meetings to allow for all scheduled work to 
be looked at thoroughly.  
 

C James Morning (11am-12:30pm) 
and afternoon (1:30pm-
3pm) 
sessions have been set up 
on 22 March. Invitations 
sent on 21 September. 

Complete 

14/07/2022 69 Risk Management Framework Implementation  
 
Minute: Head of Corporate Governance and L 
Mackenzie to review the Post Implementation 
Review schedule.  
 
 
 

C James The Risk Management post-
implementation review has 
been pushed back slightly 
and will now commence in 
January and report to the 
Committee in March.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 66  External Audit Update  
 
Minute: Cllr Lofts and M Thomas to meet with H 
Rohimun and discuss attendance at meetings.  
 

M Thomas Meeting took place on 19 
July.  

Complete 

P
age 17



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

14/07/2022 65 Internal Audit Annual Report/Head of Audit 
Opinion  
 
Minute: Democratic Services to place Internal Audit 
Governance Report on the forward plan.  
 

Democratic 
Services Team 

Included at agenda item 17. 
Also circulated for 
information as part of a mid-
meeting cycle update to 
members. 

Complete 

14/07/2022 63 Matters Arising and Action Log  
 
Minute: The Deputy Chief Executive and L 
Mackenzie to work together on a summary of the 
NAO report to present to members.  
 

R Adams Included at agenda item 14. Complete 

14/07/2022 63  Matters Arising and Action Log 
 
Minute: Deputy Chief Executive to discuss with the 
Monitoring Officer what members can do in terms of 
setting up a working group (or similar) specifically 
linked to the transport risk. Members to receive a 
paper on these recommendations.  
 

R Adams It has been agreed to 
establish a working group to 
meet prior to each formal 
ASRC meeting to review 
public transport risks with 
any issues escalated to the 
Committee.  
Rhys Jarvis, Cllr Austin 
White and Cllr Ian Auckland 
have volunteered to attend 
the Group. Dates have seen 
set for: 17 October 
       23 January 
       20 March.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 63  Matters Arising and Action Log 
 
Minute: Head of Corporate Governance to 
investigate assurance mapping and present the 
committee with an update.  
 

C James Included at agenda item 13. 
 

Complete 

P
age 18



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

14/07/2022 62  Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 9 June 
2022 
 
Minute: Democratic Services to edit the minutes to 
reflect that Cllr Auckland was present, and that 
following his nomination to be Chair it was the Chair 
who welcomed everyone to the meeting and not Cllr 
Auckland.  

Democratic 
Services Team  

The minutes have been 
amended and uploaded to 
the website.  

Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

55 Work Plan 
 
Minute: C James to check why the climate change 
paper has been pushed back. 

C James  Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

53 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 
Minute: L Sutton to have a conversation with Tim 
Taylor and ask him to put pressure on the bus and 
tram partners. 
 

L Sutton T Taylor confirmed that bus 
operators have no legal 
obligation to supply us with 
accident data and, unless 
provided alongside other 
information such as number 
of bus routes, will not be 
informative.   
 

Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

52 Draft Chair’s Annual Report 
 
Minute: Democratic Services to ensure the meeting 
dates are in all members’ diaries and circulate an 
email with these so they can forward plan and 
discuss with their reserve if they are not able to 
attend.  
 

Democratic 
Services Team 

Meetings have been 
rearranged to avoid Council 
meetings. Dates are now:  
• 19 October 2022 
• 25 January 2022 
• 22 March 2022 

Outlook invitations sent to 
Members and Reserves on 
4 August.  
 

Complete 

P
age 19



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

09/06/2022 
 

52 Draft Chair’s Annual Report 
 
Minute: C James to circulate the missing 
appendices following the meeting. 
 

C James  Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

49 Draft Accounts Progress Report 
 
Minute: M Thomas to arrange an offline 
conversation between him, Cllr Lofts and H 
Rohimun. 
 

M Thomas This has taken place. Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

47 Annual Report of the Chair of the Audit, 
Standards & Risk Panel and Verbal Update 
 
Minute: To add an item on the future of the 
Assurance Panel to the agenda of the next meeting. 

Democratic 
Services Team 

Discussed at meeting held 
on 14/07/2022. 

Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

45 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 
March 2022 
 
Minute: G Sutton to follow up with internal audit 
colleagues and clarify the number of days that had 
been taken from the previous year’s plan. 
 

G Sutton The time taken from last 
year’s plan (2021/22) was 
24 days and the 41 days 
was the time taken from this 
current year’s plan (both 
were to support the 
community transport 
review). 
 

Complete 

24/03/2022 32 Committee Effectiveness 
 
Minute: The Committee agreed unanimously that 
the matter of attendance needed to be addressed 
and asked officers to prepare an options paper with 
a view to increasing member attendance. 
 

C James Committee reduced from 8 
to 4 Members on a trial 
basis for 2022/23.  

Complete 

P
age 20



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

24/03/2022 25 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting 
held on 27 January 2022 
 
Minute: It was noted that a Treasury Management 
tutorial had not been arranged as mentioned on 
page 12 of the minutes. Members expressed the 
wish that this should still go ahead and it was 
agreed to arrange the tutorial in the near future. 
 
Treasury Management workshop to be arranged.  
 

Dawn Marshall Training took place on 1 
September.  

Complete 

27/02/2022 15 Internal Audit Reports 
 
Minute: In response to a number of queries raised 
by Members regarding the difficulties encountered in 
reading the reports on their devices, L Mackenzie 
would ascertain whether the documents could be 
produced in an easier to read format. 

L Mackenzie L Mackenzie stated that it 
would not be possible to 
change the format of the 
Grant Thornton reports. 
 
C Marriott will make paper 
copies of the reports 
available at the meeting. 
 

Closed 

27/01/2022 12 Draft 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy 
Report 
 
Minute: Councillor Jones highlighted a 
typographical error within Section B of Appendix 
1 to the report, which should indicate that the other 
long-term liabilities set out in the table above 
represented the PFI liability in respect of Doncaster 
Interchange. 
 
M Thomas to amend the document prior to being 
presented to the SYMCA Board for approval. 

M Thomas  Complete 

P
age 21



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

27/01/2022 9 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 
Minute: T Taylor replied that periodic reporting was 
received from Stagecoach. He was 
unaware of any accidents that had led to legal 
representation by the complainants; he would 
ascertain the position. He would remind Stagecoach 
of the request to provide accident and health and 
safety statistics to be fed into the report. There was 
not a definitive view in relation to SYMCA’s 
responsibility for those accidents that had occurred 
on its premises, which would be dependent upon the 
nature of the accidents; legal council could be 
sought if required. 
 
T Taylor to ascertain whether there was any SYMCA 
litigation that had resulted from accidents with the 
operators. 

T Taylor  Complete 

 

P
age 22



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
2021/22 Accounts – External Audit Update 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Chief Finance Officer/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Hassan Rohimun, External Audit - Ernst & Young LLP  
 
Summary 
The report updates the Committee on the progress of the external audit to date and 
explains the remaining steps to the issue of a final opinion. 
 
Recommendation(s)   
External Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving 
assurance on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance 
enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in 
South Yorkshire. 
 
List of Appendices Included:   

 
A SYMCA Audit Results Report 
B  SYPTE Audit Results Report 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



South Yorkshire Mayoral
Combined Area
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2022

March 2023

P
age 25



2

Private and Confidential 22 March 2023

South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
S1 2BQ

Dear Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Members

2021-22 Audit results report

We are pleased to attach our audit results report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit, Standards
and Risk Committee. We will update the Committee at its meeting scheduled for 22 March 2023 on further progress to that date and explain
the remaining steps to the issue of our final opinion.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2021-22 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements.
This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority’s
(SYMCA) accounting policies and judgements and material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of
audit challenge and the quality of evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the
management team for supporting this process. We have also included an update on our work on value for money arrangements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Committee, other members of the SYMCA and senior management. It is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Committee meeting on 22 March 2023.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 26



3

Contents
Executive
Summary01 Audit

Differences

Areas of Audit
Focus02 Audit Report03 04

05 09Other Reporting
Issues06 Independence07 Appendices08Value for Money Assessment of

Control
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The
Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to
be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit
Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Standards & Risk Committee and management of the MCA in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Committee and management of the MCA those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Committee and management of the MCA for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 27



4

Executive Summary01

P
age 28



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report tabled at the 18 October 2022 Audit, Standards and Risk Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and
approach for the audit of the financial statements. [We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions]:

• Changes in materiality. The basis of our assessment has remained consistent with prior years at 2% of gross operating expenditure. Planning materiality was set
at £4.153m, and performance materiality at £3.115m. The level at which we report differences to you has been set at £208K.

Additional audit procedures as a result of Covid-19

Other changes in the entity and regulatory environment as a result of Covid-19 that have not resulted in an additional risk, but result in the following impacts on
our audit strategy were as follows:

Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the
entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Executive’s systems. We undertook the following to
address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and

• Agreed IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

P
age 29



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit

Our audit work in respect of the MCA opinion is nearing completion. The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at the
date of this report.
• Completion of audit procedures to test payroll starters and leavers’ testing
• Investments (awaiting third party confirmations in four cases)
• IAS19 procedures (awaiting information from the actuary)
• Completion of audit procedures in respect of Grant Income
• Final review of financial statements
• Obtain letter of representation
• Subsequent events review

Our final audit opinion is subject to completion of these final procedures.

P
age 30



7

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money

In the Audit Plan and subsequent update to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, we reported that we had completed our value for money (VFM) risk
assessment and not identified any risk of significant weakness against the three reporting criteria we are required to consider under the NAO’s 2020 Code. We
have revisited our assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements and remain satisfied that we have not identified a risk of significant weakness.
As a result, we have completed our planned VFM procedures and have no matters to report by exception in the auditor’s report, see Section 03.

We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the MCA has ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report
to the MCA a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on its arrangements to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective
use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Executive plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Executive ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Executive uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 31



8

Executive Summary

Audit differences

• We have identified one unadjusted misstatement relating to the valuation of the Pension Fund. We were informed by the auditor of the pension fund that the
fund assets were undervalued by approximately £32m: the MCA’s share of this was £211K. This is not material but is above our reporting level.

• Management have corrected misstatements amounting to £375K on the valuation of assets.
• We identified minor disclosure misstatements which were not significant enough to require reporting to you.

Other reporting issues

We are reviewing the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We have no matters to report
as a result of this work.

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. However, the MCA falls
below the threshold for requiring additional work, so there will be no reporting issues in this area.

We have no other matters to report.

P
age 32



9

Executive Summary

Control observations

During the audit, we identified one significant deficiency in internal controls.

When we carried out our audit of year-end material journal entries, we found that there was “blanket authorisation” for all of these given by one email (this was the
term used in the email to us giving the explanation). While this could be interpreted as explicitly covering the listing attached to the original email, any subsequent
amendments could potentially be actioned without specific appropriate management approval.

Areas of audit focus

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of the Authority. This report sets out our observations and status
in relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration of
these matters and others identified during the period is summarised within the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report.

We request that you review these and other matters set out in this report to ensure:
• There are no residual further considerations or matters that could impact these issues
• You concur with the resolution of the issue
• There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised.

There are no matters, other than those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit,
Standards and Risk Committee or management.

Independence

Please refer to Section 8 for our update on Independence.  There are no issues to bring to your attention.

P
age 33



10

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 34



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Response to significant risks
What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In
the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting SYMCA,
which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We consider that this significant risk is associated to the following specific areas:
• Improper capitalisation of revenue expenditure in order to reduce the impact on the general fund
•  Improper application of revenue cut-off

What judgements were we focused on?
Misstatements that occur in relation to the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition,
which could affect the reported income and expenditure accounts

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition

What are we doing?

We carry out substantive procedures in response to this risk. The procedures designed to
address the identified risk are set out below:
• Document our understanding of the processes and controls in place to mitigate the risks.
• Identify and walk through those processes and controls, confirming our understanding.
• Review income and expenditure recognition policies and confirm consistency of application

through performance of testing.
• Identify significant accounting estimates for revenue and expenditure, discussing

assumptions and calculation methodology with management
• Test the identified significant accounting estimates to confirm appropriateness and

consistency with supporting records considering evidence of bias.
• Sample test material revenue and expenditure streams with a focus on assets and liabilities

at the year-end.
• Testing of revenue cut-off at the period end date and testing to identify unrecorded liabilities

at the year-end.
• Testing a sample of Property Plant and Equipment additions to confirm that the expenditure

has been appropriately capitalised.

What are our conclusions?

Subject to the completion of outstanding procedures our
testing has not identified any material misstatements for
revenue and expenditure recognition.

Our work did not identify any material issues or unusual
transactions which might indicate misreporting of the SYMCA’s
financial position.

At this stage, there are no further matters to report.

Significant Risk

P
age 35



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Response to significant risks
What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

What judgements are we focused on?

Misstatements that occur in relation to the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition,
which could affect the reported income and expenditure accounts.

Misstatements due to fraud or error

What did we do?

We reviewed revenue and expenditure recognition accounting policies to ensure that the
treatment was consistent with the previous year.

We tested the valuation of accrued income recorded in the financial statements and performed
appropriate testing to ensure that all material amounts have been correctly recognised.

We tested revenue and expenditure cut-off at the balance sheet date.

We carried out substantive testing to identify unrecorded liabilities at the year-end.

Testing of income and expenditure has been supported by the use of data analytics tools to aid
sample selection. These tools enable the full population of income and expenditure to be
included in the sampling process. The population has been filtered to enable testing to be
focused on higher risk areas, high value, and unusual transactions.

What are our conclusions?

Subject to the completion of outstanding procedures our
testing has not identified any material misstatements for
revenue and expenditure recognition.

Our work did not identify any material issues or unusual
transactions which might indicate misreporting of the SYMCA’s
financial position.

There are no further matters to report.

P
age 36



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What are we doing?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP)
represent significant balances in the MCA’s accounts and are subject to valuation
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We have:
• Considered the work performed by the SYMCA’s valuers, including the

adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities
and the results of their work;

• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their
valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square
metre);

• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been
valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and
annually for IP. We have also considered if there are any specific changes to
assets that have occurred and that these have been communicated to the
valuer (NB all assets were revalued for the 2021-22 audit).

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent
valuation; and

• Tested that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial
statements.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the MCA to make
extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the
Local Government Pension Scheme administered by South Yorkshire Pensions
Authority (SYPA). The SYMCA’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance
and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the SYMCA’s balance sheet.
At 31 March 2022 this was £23.2 million, a decrease of £10.8 million from 2020/21.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS19 report issued to the SYMCA by the
actuary.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We:
• Liaised with the auditors of SYPA to obtain assurances over the information

supplied to the actuary for the SYMCA;
• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Mercers) including the

assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting
Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit Office for all Local Government
sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial
team;

• Evaluated the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s calculations by
comparing them to the outputs of our own auditor’s actuarial model; and

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the
SYMCA’s financial statements in relation to IAS19.

• Because of audit changes to the valuation of the Pension Fund there is an
unadjusted misstatement to the SYMCA’s financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material misstatement to the financial
statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 37



14

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What are we doing?

ISA 570 Going Concern and Disclosure considerations

There is a presumption that the MCA will continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future based on the continued
provision of public services. However, the MCA is required to
carry out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to
the risks it faces. There is a need for the MCA to ensure its going
concern assessment, including its cashflow forecast, is thorough
and appropriately comprehensive. The MCA is required to ensure
that disclosures within the statement of accounts adequately
reflects its going concern assessment and in particular highlights
any uncertainties it has identified.

We:

• Assessed the adequacy of disclosures required in 2021/22, and the impact on our opinion,
should these be inadequate;

• Obtained management’s going concern assessment and review for any evidence of bias and
consistency with the accounts;

• Reviewed the financial modelling and forecasts prepared by the MCA, including key
assumptions, stress testing applied to those assumptions and considered the risk to
cashflow up to at least 12 months after the signing date of the accounts and opinion;

• Ensured that an appropriate going concern disclosure has been made within the financial
statements; and

• Considered the impact on our audit report and comply with EY consultation requirements,
if such are determined appropriate.

Accounting for Covid-19 grants

Central Government have provided a number of different Covid-
19 related grants to local authorities during the year.

The MCA needs to review each of these to establish the correct
accounting treatment. It needs to assess whether it is acting as a
principal or agent, with the accounting to follow that decision.
For those where the decision is a principal, it also needs to
assess whether there are any outstanding conditions that may
also affect the recognition of the grants as revenue during
2021/22.

On a sample of the Covid-19 grants and funding population we:
• Reviewed the accounting guidance applied by the SYMCA and assess whether the

appropriate guidance was considered and correctly applied;
• Reviewed whether any conditions are attached to grants impacting their recognition;
• Assessed whether the accounting appropriately follows those judgements; and
• Ensured that sufficient and appropriate disclosures are included in the accounts.

P
age 38



15

Audit Report03

P
age 39



16

Our opinion on the financial statements will be communicated to the Audit Standards and Risk Committee on the completion of outstanding procedures

Audit Report

Draft audit report

P
age 40



17

Audit Differences04

P
age 41



18

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or
open to interpretation.

• We have identified one unadjusted misstatement relating to the valuation of the Pension Fund. We were informed by the auditor of the pension fund that the
fund assets were undervalued by approximately £32m: the MCA’s share of this was £211K. This is not material but is above our reporting level. We will require
an explanation in the letter of representation to outline the reason for not making the correction.

• Management have corrected misstatements amounting to £375K on the valuation of assets.
• We identified minor disclosure misstatements which were not significant enough to require reporting to you.

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 42



19

Value for Money05 01

P
age 43



20

Value for money

The Authority’s responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Authority is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Authority must bring together commentary on its governance framework and how
this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Authority tailors the content to reflect its
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for
Securing value for

money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
effectiveness

Governance

V
F
M

Risk assessment

We have previously reported to the Committee the outcome of our assessment of the risk of
significant weaknesses in the Authority’s VFM arrangements: we did not identify any risks.

We have revisited our risk assessment and have not identified any additional risks.

Status of our VFM work

We have completed our VFM procedures over identified risks and we have not identified a significant
weakness in arrangements. We have no matters to report by exception.

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are required to issue our commentary on the Authority’s
VFM arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR). The AAR is issued on the conclusion of the
audit.

P
age 44



21

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 45



22

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 with
the audited financial statements.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it
complies with relevant guidance.

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the
audited financial statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm that it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and
we have no other matters to report.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent
of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We are currently concluding our work in this area and will report any matters arising to the Committee.

P
age 46



23

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the
audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which
required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if
they are significant to your oversight of the financial reporting process. They include the following:

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern; and
• Consideration of laws and regulations.

We are still awaiting external confirmation for four investments.

P
age 47



24

Assessment of Control Environment07

P
age 48



25

Assessment of Control Environment

It is the responsibility of the Executive to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to have proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the PTE has adequate arrangements to satisfy itself that the systems of
internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies
in internal control.

We have identified one deficiency: our review of material year-end journal entries identified that authorisation had been carried out using “blanket authorisation” in
a single email to cover all year-end journals. In our opinion, this does not provide evidence of sufficient consideration of year-end journals and whether they have
been appropriately approved.

We have not identified any other significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

We considered whether circumstances arising from COVID-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness in internal controls, for
example due to significant staff absences or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues to bring to your attention.

Financial controls

P
age 49



26

Independence08

P
age 50



27

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the MCA, and its directors and senior management
and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the MCA, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services
provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The next page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2022 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard
and in statute. Full details of the services that we have provided are shown below. Further detail of all fees has been provided to the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee.

P
age 51



28

Independence

Fees

Final fee
2021/22 Scale fee 2021/22 Final Fee

2020/21

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 27,613 27,613 (Note 2) 27,613 (Note 1)
Increased cost of regulation TBC 17,867

16,320Pensions work TBC 2,500 – 3,500
Value for money work TBC 2,500 – 3,500
PPE and IP valuation TBC £5,000 - £10,000
Total fees TBC TBC 43,933

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and
Local Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

(1) As highlighted in the Redmond Report, local government external audit fees
have not kept pace with regulatory change.  We believe that changes in the work
required to address professional and regulatory requirements and scope
changes associated with the risk of the organisation mean that the scale fee for
the Council should more realistically set at a level that reflects the complexity
and risk profile of the Council, and the resulting hours required to delivery the
audit. The scale fee is set by PSAA Limited.

We wrote to management and the Audit Sub-Committee Chair setting out our
considerations on the sustainability of UK local public audit. The 2020/21 Code
work includes an additional fee of £16,320 as approved by PSAA.

 Additional procedures to consider the MCA’s going concern assessment,
including our internal consultation requirement.

 Additional procedures to respond to the VFM code of audit practice
responsibilities

 The need to consider engaging EY Real Estates to review the valuation of
PPE and IP, and to look at infrastructure assets in depth

 The need to engage EY Pensions to review assumptions used in the Pensions
IAS19 liability.

(2) For 2021/22, in addition to the increased cost of regulation, additional work
was required in a number of areas. We set out an estimate of the potential
additional fee for these areas which will be discussed with management and be
subject to PSAA approval. The issues we have identified at the planning stage
which will impact on the fee include:

P
age 52



29

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity,
independence and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the
firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is dated October 2022:
EY UK 2022 Transparency Report | EY UK

Other communications

P
age 53



30

Appendices09

P
age 54



31

Appendix A

Required communications with the Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a
reference of when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the
greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and
directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Audit planning report

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with

management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

P
age 55



32

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations identified relevant to the audit committee

• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities, including
fraud with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have occurred, and the
implications thereof

• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in accordance

with the reporting framework
• The identification of any non-EY component teams used in the group audit
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going

concern
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements
• The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited
by law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Audit results report

P
age 56



33

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Fraud • Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that
a fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial

statements.
• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit

when fraud involving management is suspected
• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to the Committee’s responsibility.

Audit results report

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adoMCAd and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain

objectivity and independence

Audit Planning Report

Audit Results Report

P
age 57



34

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity
and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.
For public interest entities and listed companies, communication of minimum
requirements as detailed in the FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019:
• Relationships between EY, the company and senior management, its affiliates and its

connected parties
• Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the auditors’ objectivity and

independence
• Related safeguards
• Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such as statutory audit fees,

tax advisory fees, other non-audit service fees
• A statement of compliance with the Ethical Standard, including any non-EY firms or

external experts used in the audit
• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group’s policy for the

provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy
• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than

permitted under the Ethical Standard
• The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters

affecting auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit results report

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are
clearly inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-
compliance may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected
to occur imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the audit committee may be aware of

Audit results report

P
age 58



35

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls
identified during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or
those charged with
governance

• Written representations requested from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
or misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

P
age 59



36

Appendix B

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases
In previous reports to the Committee, we have highlighted the issue of new accounting standards and regulatory developments. IFRS 16 introduces a number of significant changes which go beyond
accounting technicalities. For example, the changes have the potential to impact on procurement processes as more information becomes available on the real cost of leases. The key accounting impact is that
assets and liabilities in relation to significant lease arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases will need to be recognised on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be
accounted for using the acquisition approach, recognising the rights acquired to use an asset.

IFRS 16 does not come into effect for the Authority until 1 April 2022. However, officers should be acting now to assess the Authority’s leasing positions and secure the required information to ensure that the
Authority will be fully compliance with the 2022/23 Code. The following table summarises some key areas officers should be progressing.

IFRS 16 theme Summary of key measures

Data collection Management should:
• Put in place a robust process to identify all arrangements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time. The adequacy of this

process should be discussed with auditors.
• Classify all such leases into low value; short-term; peppercorn; portfolio and individual leases
• Identify, collect, log and check all significant data points that affect lease accounting including: the term of the lease; reasonably certain judgements on extension

or termination; dates of rent reviews; variable payments; grandfathered decisions; non-lease components; and discount rate to be applied.

Policy Choices The Authority needs to agree on certain policy choices. In particular:
• Whether to adopt a portfolio approach
• What low value threshold to set and agree with auditors
• Which asset classes, if any, are management adopting the practical expedient in relation to non-lease components
• What is managements policy in relation to discount rates to be used?

Code adaptations for the public
sector

Finance teams should understand the Code adaptations for the public sector. The Code contains general adaptations, (e.g. the definition of a lease); transitional
interpretations (e.g. no restatement of prior periods) and adaptations that apply post transition (e.g. use of short-term lease exemption).

Transitional accounting
arrangements

Finance teams should understand the accounting required on first implementation of IFRS 16. The main impact is on former operating leases where the authority is
lessee. However, there can be implications for some finance leases where the Authority is lessee; and potentially for sub-leases, where the Authority is a lessor, that
were operating leases under the old standard.

Ongoing accounting arrangements Finance teams need to develop models to be able to properly account for initial recognition and subsequent measurement of right of use assets and associated
liabilities. This is more complex than the previous standard due to more regular remeasurements and possible modifications after certain trigger events.

Remeasurements and modifications Finance teams need to familiarise themselves with when the ‘remeasurement’ or ‘modification’ of a lease is required and what to do under each circumstance. A
modification can lead to an additional lease being recognised. It is also important to know when remeasurements require a new discount rate is to be applied to the
lease.

P
age 60



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please
refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.comP
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Yorkshire Passenger
Transport Executive
Audit results report

Year ended 31 March 2022
March 2023

P
age 63



2

Private and Confidential 22 March 2023

South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
S1 2BQ

Dear Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Members

2021-22 Audit results report

We are pleased to attach our audit results report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit, Standards
and Risk Committee. We will update the Committee at its meeting scheduled for 22 March 2023 on further progress to that date and explain
the remaining steps to the issue of our final opinion.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2021-22 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements.
This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive’s
(PTE) accounting policies and judgements and material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit
challenge and the quality of evidence required to achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management
team for supporting this process. We have also included an update on our work on value for money arrangements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Committee, other members of the PTE and senior management. It is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Committee meeting on 22 March 2023.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 64



3

Contents
Executive
Summary01 Audit

Differences

Areas of Audit
Focus02 Audit Report03 04

05 09Other Reporting
Issues06 Independence07 Appendices08Value for Money Assessment of

Control
Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The
Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to
be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit
Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Standards & Risk Committee and management of the PTE in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Committee and management of the PTE those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Committee and management of the PTE for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

V
F
M

P
age 65



4

Executive Summary01

P
age 66



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report tabled at the 18 October 2022 Audit, Standards and Risk Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and
approach for the audit of the financial statements. [We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions]:

• Changes in materiality. The basis of our assessment has remained consistent with prior years at 2% of gross operating expenditure. Planning materiality was set
at £1.742m, and performance materiality at £1.306m. The level at which we report differences to you has been set at £87K.

Additional audit procedures as a result of Covid-19

Other changes in the entity and regulatory environment as a result of Covid-19 that have not resulted in an additional risk, but result in the following impacts on
our audit strategy were as follows:

Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the
entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Executive’s systems. We undertook the following to
address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and

• Agreed IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

P
age 67



6

Executive Summary

Status of the audit

Our audit work in respect of the PTE opinion is nearing completion. The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at the
date of this report.
• Completion of procedures relating to the accounting of infrastructure assets
• Final review of financial statements
• Obtain letter of representation
• Subsequent events review

Our final audit opinion is subject to completion of these final procedures.

P
age 68



7

Executive Summary

Status of the audit – Value for Money

In the Audit Plan and subsequent update to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, we reported that we had completed our value for money (VFM) risk
assessment and not identified any risk of significant weakness against the three reporting criteria we are required to consider under the NAO’s 2020 Code. We
have revisited our assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements and remain satisfied that we have not identified a risk of significant weakness.
As a result, we have completed our planned VFM procedures and have no matters to report by exception in the auditor’s report.

We plan to issue the VFM commentary as part of issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code of Audit Practice 2020

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the PTE has ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report
to the PTE a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on its arrangements to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective
use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Executive plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Executive ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Executive uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

P
age 69



8

Executive Summary

Audit differences

• We have identified one unadjusted misstatement relating to the valuation of the Pension Fund. We were informed by the auditor of the pension fund that the
fund assets were undervalued by approximately £32m: the PTE’s share of this, at approximately 1% of the Fund, was less than £352K. This is not material but
is above our reporting level.

• Subject to the completion of outstanding procedures we have no other misstatements which require us to report to you.
• The audit difference is explained in detail in Section 4.

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Executive. We have no matters to
report as a result of this work.

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. However, the PTE falls
below the threshold for requiring additional work.

We have no other matters to report.

P
age 70



9

Executive Summary

Control observations

During the audit, we identified one significant deficiency in internal controls.

When we carried out our audit of year-end material journal entries, we found that there was “blanket authorisation” for all of these given by one email (this was the
term used in the email to us giving the explanation). While this could be interpreted as explicitly covering the listing attached to the original email, any subsequent
amendments could potentially be actioned without specific appropriate management approval.

Areas of audit focus

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of the Executive. This report sets out our observations and status
in relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration of
these matters and others identified during the period is summarised within the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report.

We request that you review these and other matters set out in this report to ensure:
• There are no residual further considerations or matters that could impact these issues
• You concur with the resolution of the issue
• There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised.

There are no matters, other than those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit,
Standards and Risk Committee or management.

Independence

Please refer to Section 8 for our update on Independence.  There are no issues to bring to your attention.

P
age 71



10

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 72



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Response to significant risks
What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

What judgements did we focus on?

Misstatements that occur in relation to the risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition,
which could affect the reported income and expenditure accounts.

Misstatements due to fraud or error

What did we do?

We reviewed revenue and expenditure recognition accounting policies to ensure that the
treatment was consistent with the previous year.

We tested the valuation of accrued income recorded in the financial statements and performed
appropriate testing to ensure that all material amounts have been correctly recognised.

We tested revenue and expenditure cut-off at the balance sheet date.

We carried out substantive testing to identify unrecorded liabilities at the year-end.

Testing of income and expenditure has been supported by the use of data analytics tools to aid
sample selection. These tools enable the full population of income and expenditure to be
included in the sampling process. The population has been filtered to enable testing to be
focused on higher risk areas, high value, and unusual transactions.

What are our conclusions?

Our testing has not identified any material misstatements for
revenue and expenditure recognition.

Our work did not identify any material issues or unusual
transactions which might indicate misreporting of the PTE’s
financial position.

P
age 73



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What have we done?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the PTE’s accounts and
are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation
charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and
apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded
in the balance sheet.

Subject to the completion of outstanding work on infrastructure assets we have:
• Considered the work performed by the PTE’s valuers, including the adequacy of the scope

of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;
• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation

(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);
• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a

5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for IP. We have
also considered if there are any specific changes to assets that have occurred and that
these have been communicated to the valuer (NB all assets were revalued for the 2021-22
audit).

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Tested that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.
• On receipt of the statements, we also reviewed the material adjustment of train rolling

stock from infrastructure to Vehicles.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
PTE to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (SYPA).
The PTE’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the PTE’s balance sheet. At
31 March 2022 this was £23.2 million, a decrease of £10.8 million from
2020/21.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS19 report issued to the PTE
by the actuary.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We have:
• Liaised with the auditors of SYPA to obtain assurances over the information supplied to

the actuary for the PTE;
• Assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Mercers) including the assumptions they

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team;

• Evaluated the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s calculations by comparing
them to the outputs of our own auditor’s actuarial model; and

• Reviewed and tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within the PTE’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

• Because of changes to the valuation of the Pension Fund made resulting from the audit,
there is an unadjusted misstatement to the PTE’s own financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material misstatement to the financial
statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 74



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What are we doing?

ISA 570 Going Concern and Disclosure considerations

There is a presumption that the PTE will continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future based on the continued
provision of public services. However, the PTE is required to
carry out a going concern assessment proportionate to the risks
it faces. There is a need for the PTE to ensure its going concern
assessment, including its cashflow forecast, is thorough and
appropriately comprehensive. The PTE is required to ensure that
disclosures within the statement of accounts adequately reflects
its going concern assessment and in particular highlights any
uncertainties it has identified.

Our audit procedures comprise:

• assessing the adequacy of disclosures required in 2021-22, and the impact on our opinion,
should these be inadequate;

• obtaining management’s going concern assessment and undertaking a review for any
evidence of bias and consistency with the accounts;

• reviewing the financial modelling and forecasts prepared by the PTE, including key
assumptions, stress testing applied to those assumptions and considered the risk to
cashflow up to at least 12 months after the signing date of the accounts and opinion;

• ensuring that an appropriate going concern disclosure has been made within the financial
statements; and

• considering the impact on our audit report and comply with EY consultation requirements,
if such are determined appropriate.

Accounting for Covid-19 grants

Central Government have provided a number of different Covid-
19 related grants to local authorities during the year.

The PTE needs to review each of these to establish the correct
accounting treatment. It needs to assess whether it is acting as a
principal or agent, with the accounting to follow that decision.
For those where the decision is a principal, it also needs to
assess whether there are any outstanding conditions that may
also affect the recognition of the grants as revenue during
2021/22.

On a sample of the Covid-19 grants and funding population we:
• reviewed the accounting guidance applied by the PTE and assess whether the appropriate

guidance was considered and correctly applied;
• reviewed whether any conditions are attached to grants impacting their recognition;
• assessed whether the accounting appropriately follows those judgements; and
• ensured that sufficient and appropriate disclosures are included in the accounts.

P
age 75



14

Audit Report03

P
age 76



15

Audit Report

Draft audit report

Our opinion on the financial statements will be communicated to the Audit Standards and Risk Committee on the completion of outstanding procedures

P
age 77



16

Audit Differences04

P
age 78



17

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or
open to interpretation.

There is one uncorrected misstatement relating to the valuation of the Pension Fund. We were informed by the auditor of the pension fund that the Fund assets
were undervalued by approximately £32m: the PTE’s share of this, at approximately 1% of the Fund, was less than £352K. This is not material but is above the level
which we must report to you. We will require an explanation in the letter of representation to outline the reason for not making the correction.

There were some minor disclosure amendments agreed during the audit but none were significant enough to require reporting to you, other than updating the
accounting policies over the change of classification of trams and tram trains from infrastructure to vehicles. This is to ensure consistency with the disclosures in
the statements.

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 79



18

Value for Money05 01

P
age 80



19

Value for money

The Executive’s responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Executive is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Executive must bring together commentary on its governance framework and how
this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Executive tailors the content to reflect its
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the CIPFA code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Arrangements for
Securing value for

money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
effectiveness

Governance

V
F
M

Risk assessment

We have previously reported to the Committee the outcome of our assessment of the risk of
significant weaknesses in the Executive’s VFM arrangements: we did not identify any risks.

We have revisited our risk assessment and did not identified any additional risks.

Status of our VFM work

We have completed our VFM procedures over identified risks and we have not identified a significant
weakness in arrangements. We have no matters to report by exception.

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are required to issue our commentary on the Executive’s
VFM arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR). The AAR is issued on the conclusion of the
audit.

P
age 81



20

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 82



21

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 with
the audited financial statements.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it
complies with relevant guidance.

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the
audited financial statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm that it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and
we have no other matters to report.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent
of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We are currently concluding our work in this area and will report any matters arising to the Committee.

P
age 83



22

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the
audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which
required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if
they are significant to your oversight of the financial reporting process. They include the following:

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern; and
• Consideration of laws and regulations.

P
age 84



23

Assessment of Control Environment07

P
age 85



24

Assessment of Control Environment

It is the responsibility of the Executive to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to have proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the PTE has adequate arrangements to satisfy itself that the systems of
internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies
in internal control.

We have identified one deficiency: our review of material year-end journal entries identified that authorisation had been carried out using “blanket authorisation” in
a single email to cover all year-end journals. In our opinion, this does not provide evidence of sufficient consideration of year-end journals and whether they have
been appropriately approved.

We have not identified any other significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

We considered whether circumstances arising from COVID-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness in internal controls, for
example due to significant staff absences or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues to bring to your attention.

Financial controls

P
age 86



25

Independence08

P
age 87



26

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the PTE, and its directors and senior management
and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the PTE, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services
provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could
compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The next page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2022 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard
and in statute. Full details of the services that we have provided are shown below. Further detail of all fees has been provided to the Audit, Governance and
Standards Committee.

P
age 88



27

Independence

Fees

Final fee
2021/22 Scale fee 2021/22 Final Fee

2020/21

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 27,613 27,613 (Note 2) 27,613 (Note 1)
Increased cost of regulation TBC 17,867

12,360
Pensions work TBC 2,500 – 3,500

Value for money work TBC 2,500 – 3,500

PPE and IP valuation TBC £5,000 - £10,000
Total fees TBC TBC 39.973

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and
Local Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

(1) As highlighted in the Redmond Report, local government external audit fees
have not kept pace with regulatory change.  We believe that changes in the work
required to address professional and regulatory requirements and scope
changes associated with the risk of the organisation mean that the scale fee for
the Council should more realistically set at a level that reflects the complexity
and risk profile of the Council, and the resulting hours required to delivery the
audit. The scale fee is set by PSAA Limited.

We wrote to management and the Audit Sub-Committee Chair setting out our
considerations on the sustainability of UK local public audit. The 2020/21 Code
work includes an additional fee of £12,360 as approved by PSAA.

 Additional procedures to consider the PTE’s going concern assessment,
including our internal consultation requirement.

 Additional procedures to respond to VFM code of audit practice
responsibilities

 The need to consider engaging EY Real Estates to review the valuation of
PPE and IP, and to look at infrastructure assets in depth

 The need to engage EY Pensions to review assumptions used in the Pensions
IAS19 liability.

(2) For 2021/22, in addition to the increased cost of regulation, additional work
was required in a number of areas. We set out an estimate of the potential
additional fee for these areas which will be discussed with management and be
subject to PSAA approval. The issues we have identified at the planning stage
which will impact on the fee include:

P
age 89



28

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity,
independence and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the
firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is dated October 2022 :
EY UK 2022 Transparency Report | EY UK

Other communications

P
age 90



29

Appendices09

P
age 91



30

Appendix A

Required communications with the Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed these here together with a
reference of when and where they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the
greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and
directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Audit planning report

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with

management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

P
age 92



31

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations identified relevant to the audit committee

• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities, including
fraud with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have occurred, and the
implications thereof

• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in accordance

with the reporting framework
• The identification of any non-EY component teams used in the group audit
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going

concern
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation

and presentation of the financial statements
• The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited
by law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Audit results report

P
age 93



32

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Fraud • Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that
a fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial

statements.
• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit

when fraud involving management is suspected
• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to the Committee’s responsibility.

Audit results report

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain

objectivity and independence

Audit Planning Report

Audit Results Report

P
age 94



33

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity
and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.
For public interest entities and listed companies, communication of minimum
requirements as detailed in the FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019:
• Relationships between EY, the company and senior management, its affiliates and its

connected parties
• Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the auditors’ objectivity and

independence
• Related safeguards
• Fees charged by EY analysed into appropriate categories such as statutory audit fees,

tax advisory fees, other non-audit service fees
• A statement of compliance with the Ethical Standard, including any non-EY firms or

external experts used in the audit
• Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group’s policy for the

provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy
• Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than

permitted under the Ethical Standard
• The audit committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters

affecting auditor independence

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit results report

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are
clearly inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-
compliance may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected
to occur imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws
and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the audit committee may be aware of

Audit results report

P
age 95



34

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls
identified during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or
those charged with
governance

• Written representations requested from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
or misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

P
age 96



35

Appendix B

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases
In previous reports to the Committee, we have highlighted the issue of new accounting standards and regulatory developments. IFRS 16 introduces a number of significant changes which go beyond
accounting technicalities. For example, the changes have the potential to impact on procurement processes as more information becomes available on the real cost of leases. The key accounting impact is that
assets and liabilities in relation to significant lease arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases will need to be recognised on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be
accounted for using the acquisition approach, recognising the rights acquired to use an asset.

IFRS 16 does not come into effect for the Executive until 1 April 2024, having been further postponed. However, officers should be acting now to  its leasing positions and secure the required information to
ensure full compliance with the 2022/23 Code. The following table summarises some key areas officers should be progressing.

IFRS 16 theme Summary of key measures

Data collection Management should:
• Put in place a robust process to identify all arrangements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time. The adequacy of this

process should be discussed with auditors.
• Classify all such leases into low value; short-term; peppercorn; portfolio and individual leases
• Identify, collect, log and check all significant data points that affect lease accounting including: the term of the lease; reasonably certain judgements on extension

or termination; dates of rent reviews; variable payments; grandfathered decisions; non-lease components; and discount rate to be applied.

Policy Choices The Executive needs to agree on certain policy choices. In particular:
• Whether to adopt a portfolio approach
• What low value threshold to set and agree with auditors
• Which asset classes, if any, are management adopting the practical expedient in relation to non-lease components
• What is managements policy in relation to discount rates to be used?

Code adaptations for the public
sector

Finance teams should understand the Code adaptations for the public sector. The Code contains general adaptations, (e.g. the definition of a lease); transitional
interpretations (e.g. no restatement of prior periods) and adaptations that apply post transition (e.g. use of short-term lease exemption).

Transitional accounting
arrangements

Finance teams should understand the accounting required on first implementation of IFRS 16. The main impact is on former operating leases where the authority is
lessee. However, there can be implications for some finance leases where the PTE is lessee; and potentially for sub-leases, where it is a lessor, that were operating
leases under the old standard.

Ongoing accounting arrangements Finance teams need to develop models to be able to properly account for initial recognition and subsequent measurement of right of use assets and associated
liabilities. This is more complex than the previous standard due to more regular remeasurements and possible modifications after certain trigger events.

Remeasurements and modifications Finance teams need to familiarise themselves with when the ‘remeasurement’ or ‘modification’ of a lease is required and what to do under each circumstance. A
modification can lead to an additional lease being recognised. It is also important to know when remeasurements require a new discount rate is to be applied to the
lease.

P
age 97



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please
refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 98



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Director of Resources & Investment/s73 Officer  
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 
Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving 
assurance on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance 
enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in 
South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendation(s)   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to note the progress of 2022/23 
audit activity.  
  
List of Appendices Included:   

 
A Internal Audit Plan Progress Report March 2023 
 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 101

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

P
age 102



Commercial in confidence

P
age 103



Commercial in confidence

P
age 104



Commercial in confidence

P
age 105



P
age 106



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
Internal Audit Reports 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Director of Resources & Investment/s73 Officer  
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 
Summary 
This paper presents four reports from the internal audit report from the 2022/23 Internal 
Audit Plan.  
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving 
assurance on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance 
enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient 
way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire.  
 
Recommendation(s)   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to consider the findings and 
recommendations of the internal audit listed below. 
  
List of Appendices Included:   
 
A Governance Audit 
B  Risk Management Audit 
C Core Financial Controls 
D Supplier Resilience Follow Up 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 109

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com
mailto:matt.d.lee@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 110



Commercial in confidence

P
age 111



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 112



Commercial in confidence

P
age 113



Commercial in confidence

P
age 114



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 115



Commercial in confidence

2.1

P
age 116



Commercial in confidence

2.2

•

•

P
age 117



P
age 118



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 119



Commercial in confidence

P
age 120



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 121



P
age 122



P
age 123

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 124



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 125



Commercial in confidence

P
age 126



Commercial in confidence

P
age 127



Commercial in confidence

•

•

–

–

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 128



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 129



Commercial in confidence

Risk 
Naïve

Risk 
Aware

Risk 
Defined Risk 

Managed

Risk 
Enabled

0

35

21

70

63

49

P
age 130



Commercial in confidence

P
age 131



Commercial in confidence

1.1

P
age 132



Commercial in confidence

1.2

•

•

•

P
age 133



Commercial in confidence

2.1

•

•

P
age 134



Commercial in confidence

2.2

•

•

P
age 135



P
age 136



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 137



Commercial in confidence

P
age 138



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 139



P
age 140



P
age 141

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com
mailto:Sharon.F.Harrison@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 142



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 143



Commercial in confidence

•

-

•

-

•

•

-

•

P
age 144



Commercial in confidence

P
age 145



Commercial in confidence

-

•

-

P
age 146



Commercial in confidence

1.1

•

•

•

•

P
age 147



Commercial in confidence

1.2

P
age 148



Commercial in confidence

2.1

P
age 149



Commercial in confidence

3.1

•

•

•

•

P
age 150



Commercial in confidence

4.1

•

•

•

•

P
age 151



Commercial in confidence

4.1

P
age 152



Commercial in confidence

5.1

P
age 153



P
age 154



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 155



Commercial in confidence

P
age 156



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 157



P
age 158



P
age 159

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com
mailto:rita.bhadhal@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 160



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 161



Commercial in confidence

P
age 162



Commercial in confidence

P
age 163



Commercial in confidence

P
age 164



Commercial in confidence

P
age 165



Commercial in confidence

P
age 166



Commercial in confidence

P
age 167



Commercial in confidence

P
age 168



Commercial in confidence

P
age 169



P
age 170



Commercial in confidence

P
age 171



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 172



P
age 173



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Director of Resources & Investment/s73 Officer  
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 
Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and 
reviewing the Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as 
appropriate, from the Internal Auditor. This report presents an update on the 
implementation of the recommendations made by Internal Audit. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving 
assurance on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance 
enables the Combined Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and 
businesses in South Yorkshire. 

 
Recommendation(s)   
Members are asked to review the progress of the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations. 

 
List of Appendices Included:   

 
A Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker March 2023 
 

Page 175

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 177



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

2

4

14

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Implemented Overdue Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 178



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations based on risks: 

Appendix 1: 

Our recommendation ratings

3

Rating Description Possible features

Findings that are fundamental to the management 

of risk in the business area, representing a 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Key activity or control not designed or operating effectively

• Potential for fraud identified

• Non-compliance with key procedures/standards

• Non-compliance with regulation

Findings that are important to the management of 

risk in the business area, representing a moderate 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Important activity or control not designed or operating effectively 

• Impact is contained within the department and compensating controls would detect errors

• Possibility for fraud exists

• Control failures identified but not in key controls

• Non-compliance with procedures/standards (but not resulting in key control failure)

Findings that identify non-compliance with 

established procedures, or which identify changes 

that could improve the efficiency and/or 

effectiveness of the activity or control but which are 

not vital to the management of risk in the business 

area. 

• Minor control design or operational weakness 

• Minor non-compliance with procedures/standards

•

•

P
age 179



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Recommendation Tracker October 2020

Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 180



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report & Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Director of Resources & Investment/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 
Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 
Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as appropriate, from the Internal 
Auditor. This report presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations 
made by Internal Audit. 
 
Recommendation(s)   
Members are asked to consider the Draft Internal Audit Annual Report & Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion. 
  
List of Appendices Included:   

 
A Draft Internal Audit Annual Report & Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 

Page 181

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft subject to completion and 

finalisation of outstanding 
reviews 

P
age 183

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 184



Commercial in confidence

P
age 185



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 186



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 187



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 188



Commercial in confidence

P
age 189



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 190



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 191



Commercial in confidence

P
age 192



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 193



Commercial in confidence

P
age 194



Commercial in confidence

12

2

13

1

1

5

14

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Implemented Superseded Extended
Implementation

Dates

Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 195



Commercial in confidence

27

5

2
7

Not yet due Overdue High Medium Low risk

1 1

5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Executive Director of Resources and Investment Chief Legal and Monitoring Officer

Low Medium High

P
age 196



P
age 197



Commercial in confidence

P
age 198



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 199



P
age 200



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
Wednesday, 22 March 2023 

 
Risk Management Monitoring Report 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Has it been included on the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions? 
 

Not a Key Decision 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Director of Resources & Investment/s73 Officer  
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Corporate Governance 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of embedding the Risk Management 
Framework and the Risk Management Dashboard, which includes: 

• The corporate risks of the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA).   
• ‘High’ and ‘Medium/High’ risks at Directorate level (operational risk). 
• Risks with a health and safety ‘theme’ with a score of 5 or over. 

 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Effective risk management is a key principle of good governance and decision making, 
which enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
ASRC members are asked to consider the Risk Management Dashboard and note the 
progress in embedding risk management processes. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
None  
  
  

Page 201

Agenda Item 13

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


1.  Background 
  
1.1 Following the recommendation of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, the 

MCA approved the Risk Management Framework at their meeting in July. In 
October, a post-implementation self-assessment commenced. This review took into 
account the recommendations of the internal audit report on risk management 
previously considered by the Committee in July.  
 
The findings of the assessment culminated in a report to the Executive Leadership 
Board in December and an amended Framework progressing to the Committee in 
January for consideration.  

  
2. Embedding the Risk Management Framework – Progress since January 
  
2.1 Since January two key changes have been implemented to further embed risk 

management practice. The landing page in the IT system has been reconfigured to 
give users a better oversight of all recorded risks. This is shown through a stacked 
bar chart for all the Corporate risks by owner, and also a stacked bar chart of 
operational risks for each Directorate. Each user can see all risks but can only edit 
those that they either own or have been assigned. The dashboard also includes 
direct links, bespoke to the user, to their specific risks and their actions.  
 
Users of the system will now be sent, on the 1st of the month, rather than weekly, a 
reminder to review their risks. The reminder includes a link directly to the user’s 
risks and a link directly to the user’s actions. The reminder also sets out the hard 
deadlines for quarterly reviews and system shutdown dates where the system will 
be frozen in order to generate reports for the Executive Leadership Board and the 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee. These changes have been communicated to 
users via an e-bulletin.  
 
Next steps 
Governance Team will continue to enhance the dashboard with the inclusion of 
comparative data from period to period including the development of the heat map 
to show risk score movement over time (rather than just from inherent to residual 
score) and in response to any feedback from the Committee. 
 
A Risk Management Support Plan will be developed for the next 12 months to 
ensure that these and other activities can be delivered within the allocated 
resource. The Plan will include the following activity:  

• Quarterly reporting cycle (production of dashboard). 
• Dashboard development. 
• Development of training resources to support users of the IT system. 
• System maintenance. 

  
3. Risk Dashboard 
  
3.1 The Risk Dashboard provided at appendix A provides the following information: 

 
Corporate Risks 
 
Corporate risks by ‘strategic group’ - a bar chart that demonstrates the volume 
of risks and respective ratings by strategic ‘group’ (the categories established by 
the Framework for reporting purposes). 

Page 202



Corporate risks by ‘risk score’ – a bar chart that demonstrates the spread of 
corporate risks by current risk score.  
Corporate risks by ‘Directorate’ – a bar chart that demonstrates the risks and 
where they reside within the directorates of the MCA.  
Heat Map - The heat map provides a visual representation of the position of the 
risks within the probability and impact scoring grid and indicates the change in 
score from inherent to residual following the application of controls.    
Corporate Risk Register – provides the risk description, inherent risk score, 
controls, residual risk score and mitigating actions. Lists risks from high to low. 
 
Summary 
The table below summarises corporate risks with residual scores of ‘medium/high’ 
and ‘high’. There are no new Corporate Risks since the last report, none have been 
closed or have changed score. More detail can be found within the Risk Dashboard 
Report Risk Register.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.2 Directorate/Team Risks 
 
Volume of risks by risk score per Directorate - a bar chart that illustrates the 
volume of risks by residual risk score/ 
Volume of risks per team within each Directorate - a bar chart that illustrates the 
volume of risks by residual risk score distributed across teams within a Directorate. 
Directorate/Team level Risks Register - provides the risk description, inherent 
risk score, controls, residual risk score and mitigating actions for all risks scoring 
medium-high and high (amber and red). 
 
Summary 
There are currently 20 risks at directorate level with a residual risk score of 
‘medium/high’ and ‘high’. There are no ‘medium/high’ and ‘high’ scoring risks within 
the Strategy and Development Directorate. More detail can be found within the Risk 
Dashboard Report Risk Register.  

  
3.3 Health & Safety Risks 

 
Risk Register of risks with a health and safety ‘theme’ – provides the risk 
description, inherent risk score, controls, residual risk score and mitigating actions 
for all risks with a score of 5 or above. There is a low appetite for any risks which 
have a health and safety element to them. 
 
 
 
 

Page 203



Summary 
There are 20 risks scoring 5 or over, two of which have a residual score of 
‘medium/high’ the remaining 18 have a residual score of ‘medium’. More detail can 
be found within the Risk Dashboard Report Risk Register.  

  
4. Consultation on Proposal  

 
4.1 Not applicable 
  
5. 
 

Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   

5.1  Not applicable 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no specific financial risk implications however, failure to effectively 

manage risk may have significant financial and reputational impact and for the 
MCA. 

  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no human resources implications as a result of this report. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of this report. 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no ICT implications as a result of this report other than the ongoing 

requirement to add IT users to the user group for the risk management IT system. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   
  
12.1 There are no communications or marketing implications as result of this report. 
  
List of Appendices Included:   
 
A Risk Management Dashboard 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 

Page 204



Risk Dashboard 

March 2023

P
age 205



South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
Corporate Risk Dashboard – March 2023

Corporate Risks by Strategic Group

Corporate Risks by Executive Level OwnershipCorporate Risks by Risk Score
(no change in volume or volume per risk score since last report in Jan 23)

Commissioned Operational Delivery – Cautious

Financial – Cautious

Legal Compliance & Regulation – Averse

Operational Transport – Cautious

Organisational – Open

Policy – Open

Corporate Risks are defined as being cross cutting, on-going or longer-term and have an impact on SYMCA and its strategic objectives.  These 
risks are owned and updated by Executive Directors as part of their role within the Executive Leadership Team and reported into the 
Executive Leadership Board and ASRC quarterly.

Scoring Matrix

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Low Medium Med/High High 0 1 2 3 4 5

Legal & Governance

Infrastructure & Place

Strategy & Development

Resources & Investment

CEX Office

HR & OD

Low Medium Med/High HighRisk Appetite for Strategic Groups

P
age 206



South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority

Corporate Risk Heat Map – lines demonstrate the risk score movement from inherent to residual score

P
age 207



High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

John Dowie Reference: 1092    
Prefix: COR0007  

Net Zero, Sustainability/ Climate 
Change

Due to: an inability to galvanise the required level of support,
consensus and leadership across the region, from our
partners and stakeholders both private and public    
There is a risk that: the approach is fragmented    
Resulting in: a failure to achieve the net zero target, by 2040    

High (5:5=25) The MCA strategy requires that the Net Zero response runs through our core programmes.  

Working with partners / stakeholders to develop projects that take account of de-carbonisation.  

Initial focus on housing retrofit, Electric vehicles (electric buses, car charging) energy, tree planting

High (5:5=25) We are actively working with Sheffield University to 
develop regional data to understand the impact of 
our (& partners) programmes and projects to 
understand the current position and baseline. 

Richard Sulley Richard Sulley 31 Mar 2023 System default target dates have been applied, 
when the risk inputted. Action actually due 31/3/23

03 Nov 2022

The most impactful interventions to focus the 
renewal fund upon are being determined through 
our work with partners e.g. should we carry out 
additional tree planting and promotion and usage 
of green power.

Richard Sulley Richard Sulley 31 Mar 2023 Default target dates were applied when the risk 
was inputted. Actual target date 31/3/23

03 Nov 2022

Integrating our response to net zero and climate 
emergency into investment decision making 
processes.   

Richard Sulley Richard Sulley 31 Mar 2023 Default target dates were applied when the risk 
was inputted. Actual target date 31/3/23

03 Nov 2022

John Dowie Reference: 1105    
Prefix: COR0009  

Bus: Recovery Funding Due to: Reduced/terminated recovery funding from central
government and lower levels of patronage    
There is a risk that: The network suffers major cuts    
Resulting in: a spiral of decline    

High (5:5=25) Ongoing dialogue with DfT officials and ministers to shape the existing and future proposals.

Recovery funding secured until 31 March 2023

Continue payment of concessions at pre-COVID rates until April 2023 on the DfT deflator

Adjustments to pre-COVID rates proportionate to network mileage to allow underspend to be retained 
and potentially used for future network protection.

Service change/consultation process in place with operators to ensure early notice of potential changes.     

Maintenance of Protection of Priority Services from reserve and use of wider reserves across SYMCA to 
support short-term mitigations to June/July 2023

Monitor driver resources and recruitment to understand limitations on resource to deliver any uplift in 
service levels

High (5:4=20) Continue to press government for clarity on future 
funding arrangements from Jan 2023

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 20 Jan 2023 Closed: Funding from Jan to March 2023 now 
known.

17 Jan 2023

Working with bus operators to identify services at 
most risk of reduction and prepare prioritised list of 
services for consideration.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Jul 2023 Prioritisation completed ahead of anticipated 
funding end in October 2022. Extension of BRG 
and additional local funding will secure services 
until end July 2023. Further review will be required 
to determine any changes requiored at the end of 
funding.

04 Oct 2022

Ensure SYSL deliver committed tram service 
pattern from Oct 2022.

Stephen Edwards Tim Taylor 09 Oct 2022 Closed: Timetable changes completed 9 October 10 Oct 2022

Rolling patronage forecast  to inform likely service 
levels 

Stephen Edwards Mark Cowling 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Forecasts produced 24 Oct 2022

Agree future arrangements for a return to 
concessionary payments (based on actuals) and 
opportunity to recycle any underspend to support 
services

Tim Taylor Suzanne 
Hutchinson

31 Mar 2023 Following the extension of BRG payments 
discussions with operators are progressing at 
different speeds depending on their patronage 
levels and their position with regard to funding.

10 Oct 2022

Continue with stakeholder engagement on service 
changes in October and prioritisation of possible 
resource

John Dowie Tim Taylor 31 Jul 2023 Closed: Work completed for October 2022 network 
change

17 Jan 2023

Agree with ED's and Leaders approach to tendered 
services from 23 July following BRG extension to 
30 June 2023.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 14 Apr 2023 Meetings arranged in Feb and March with ED and 
LA Leaders

23 Feb 2023

Deliver tendered bus service network from July 
2023 (subject to MCA approval)

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 23 Jul 2023 Meetings with ED and Leaders in place during 
February and March to confirm approach to 
tendered services from July.

23 Feb 2023

John Dowie Reference: 1164    
Prefix: COR0015  

Tram Services Due to: A delay in concluding future operating model for tram
services beyond the current operating concession and then
completing transition    
There is a risk that: the MCA is unable to achieve the delivery
of a seamless transition in tram operating model, with delays
to building the project team, development of a resilient work
plan with time allowance for mitigations and the execution of
this delivery plan    
Resulting in: financial, capability and capacity pressures as
well disruption to tram services    

High (5:5=25) Appointment of an Interim Programme Director (IPD)- Light Rail Transport Operation.

 Light Rail Development Programme established and key milestones identified

Governance arrangements established to oversee the programme of work (Concession end, Financial 
Sustainability, Asset Renewal and Future Vision)

Reporting and engagement plan established encompassing Management Board, SY Chief Execs, TEB 
and MCA     

Tram Project Reserve created to support readiness activity.

On 18 October 2022, the MCA Board agreed that the operating model following the end of the current 
contract with SYSL in March 2024 would be an "arm's length wholly owned subsidiary" of the MCA. 

High (5:4=20) Conclude analysis of options for concession end 
and take finalised proposals re procurement route 
the MCA

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 01 Apr 2022 Closed: On 18 October 2022, the MCA Board 
agreed that the operating model following the end 
of the current contract with SYSL in March 2024 
would be an "arm's length wholly owned 
subsidiary" of the MCA. 

01 Dec 2022

Briefing to key stakeholders on options and 
risks/benefits

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 01 Apr 2022 Closed: Throughout the tram operating model 
option development process, there has been 
ongoing engagement with district Leaders, Chief 
Executives and senior colleagues within SYMCA 
(via meetings, briefings and papers)

01 Dec 2022

Prepare a briefing paper on options for 
consideration by MCA - Mar-22

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 01 Apr 2022 Complete 30 Sep 2022

Monitor progress on work programme with regular 
review of milestones

Chris Coleman Chris Coleman 31 Mar 2023 The Mass Transit and Concession End 
Programmes are reviewed regularly as part of the 
LRP Governance process.  This includes meetings 
with the SRO at the LRP Steering Group and LRP 
Board.  

05 Jan 2023

Recruitment underway for wider tram concession 
team, prioritising, operational/engineering and 
PMO roles

John Dowie To be allocated 31 Oct 2023

Martin Swales Reference: 2300    
Prefix: COR0022  

Doncaster Sheffield Airport Closure. Due to: the cessation of aviation operations    
There is a risk that: the area will be subject to direct and
indirect job losses    
Resulting in: a drag on the regional economy and the area
becoming less desirable for inward investment.    

High (5:5=25) The MCA continues to engage with all stakeholders to explore opportunities to maintain aviation. High (5:4=20) Continuing to work with City of Doncaster Council 
on their case for CPO.

Martin Swales Martin Swales 09 Mar 2023 The MCA Executive Team work is ongoing with 
CDC and the other constituent authorities CEXs

10 Mar 2023

Medium/High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

John Dowie Reference: 1195    
Prefix: COR0017  

Transport Due to: The award of the CRSTS programme funding will
provide related regional capital funds for five years from April
2022 and will be closely monitored by DfT    
There is a risk that: the capacity and capability in the region is
insufficient to deliver extensive projects in the programme
within timescale    
Resulting in: the potential damage to the reputation of the
MCA and Mayor.    

High (5:4=20) Actions to implement the recommendations of the recent independent BPR implemented through the 
refreshed Assurance Framework 

Immediate resource planning for the next stage submission of CRSTS, deadline January 2022.

Working with Finance to support LAs in developing and submitting project proposals efficiently for 
CRSTS by April 2022 (to note CRSTS proposals are made up of 80-100 individual projects).

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Continue to work with Finance on LA submissions 
to create a pipeline of activity.

Laurie Thomas Laurie Thomas 01 Apr 2023

Additional team members to support the work will 
be requested through the annual business 
planning process.

To be allocated To be allocated 01 Apr 2023

Agreement reached with the MCA for disbursal of 
the CRSTS revenue grant, working with Districts to 
agree their individual plans.

To be allocated To be allocated 01 Apr 2023

Executive Director I & P to engage with problem 
areas to help unblock/troubleshoot 
project/programme delivery issues

John Dowie John Dowie 01 Oct 2022 Ongoing action - Executive Director I & P to 
engage with problem areas as and when problems 
arise

06 Oct 2022

Gareth Sutton Reference: 1224    
Prefix: COR0021  

Heightened Cyber Security Threat Due to: an increase in the number of cyber-attacks, due to the
increasing reliance on digital    
There is a risk that: there is a successful cyber attack    
Resulting in: operational disruption, data corruption, systems
outage and loss of finances.    

High (5:5=25) Anti-virus software, updated hourly, installed across all infrastructure.

Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, installed and always evolving to address current threats, covers 
email filtering to identify and block impersonators and filtering attachments for abnormalities for the IT 
team to check prior to release.  

Web-filtering to restrict and prohibit unauthorised access and data loss.

An IT Policy exists and is updated as necessary, last updated in 2021.

Password policy exists implementing good practice to build strong access controls including multi-factor 
authentication.

Activity monitoring takes place including how people access the system.  

Phishing attacks, internal testing takes place.

Software patching takes place to ensure software updates are carried out.

Annual outsourced penetration testing, which is part of the Cyber Essentials requirements.

Physical security enhancements including restricting a non-employee plugging a laptop into MCA 
network.   

Enhance Management Board reporting of attacks and their management. 

Achieved Cyber Essentials accreditation Basic by 31.12.22
.  

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Enhance employee awareness and reporting of 
current threat types, volume and attacks prohibited.  

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Dashboards are being prepared to highlight cyber 
issues.  These will be uploaded to the Intranet. 

IT are launching a phishing campaign to raise 
awareness further / provide training on

12 Jan 2023

Further analysis and work to be undertaken to 
address utilised dated legacy systems - required as 
a milestone towards achieving Cyber Essentials 
Accreditation.

Dave Bradwell Dave Bradwell 30 Jun 2023 Closed: Cyber Essentials has now been achieved. 12 Jan 2023

Achieve Cyber Essentials accreditation (Basic by 
31.12.22)
.  

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Cyber essentials, basic, achieved 09 Jan 2023

Reconsider the structure of the IT Team, to include 
administrator resource to support the generation of 
the reports for Management Board and wider 
executive management to raise awareness.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 30 Jun 2023 Proposal on hold and dependent of the recruitment 
of a Head of IT

09 Jan 2023

External phishing exercise undertaken with a 
report prepared that details performance and offers 
recommendations. Internal comms work now 
underway to draw attention to the findings.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023

Medium

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Gareth Sutton Reference: 1005    
Prefix: COR0001  

Adult Education Budget Performance Due to: potential under performance within the programme    
There is a risk that: we fail to deliver all of the planned
academic year outputs for the region and its people within the
year    
Resulting in: back loading and adverse reputational impact on
the MCA and partners.    

High (4:4=16) Performance monitoring meetings with all providers are underway to understand planned delivery 
volumes and their delivery intentions.

Performance reporting to Management Board has taken place to highlight the delivery challenges.

Funding & Performance Rules set out the conditions of funding and how underperformance will be 
addressed. 

The MCA has audit step in rights should it need to undertake more robust reviews.

The MCA has some options to redeploy funding away from underperforming areas where necessary.  

Performance analysis and monitoring will inform remedial actions.

Medium (4:2=8) Further performance analysis is being undertaken 
at the mid-year point to test outputs achieved to 
date and forecast to the end of the programme.

Sue Sykes Sue Sykes 30 Aug 2022 Closed: Completed 10 Jan 2023

Performance analysis and monitoring will inform 
remedial actions.

Sue Sykes Sue Sykes 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Move to Control 24 Feb 2023

An options paper to be prepared and shared with 
Management Board and presented to the Skills 
Board and the MCA.

Gareth Sutton Joseph Quinn 26 Oct 2022 Closed: Adam Greenwood has finalised final 
position for the year and contracting is underway.  

30 Nov 2022

Evaluation of 2021/22 approach to determining the 
required provision and commissioning process. 

Gareth Sutton Adam Greenwood 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Discussion with Gareth S, to close as 
complete

10 Jan 2023

Review of capacity and capability requirements for 
AEB has been undertaken and subsequent 
recruitment, predominantly in the Skills Team,  is 
underway

Adam Greenwood Adam Greenwood 30 Jun 2023

An organisational restructure has been agreed that 
will see the transfer of capacity and skills to the 
business and skills directorate, supplementing 
existing headcount. This new resource will work 
directly to the Assistant Director of Skills.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 01 Apr 2023

Corporate Risk Register - 13 March 2023

P
age 208



Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Clare Monaghan Reference: 1015    
Prefix: COR0002  

Policy change causes disruption Due to: Changes to the political and policy operating
environment e.g. Devolution White paper    
There is a risk that: regional priorities shift    
Resulting in: disruption to the prospects of achieving our
mission    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Engaging with Government officials to shape proposed policy priorities and shifts.

Ongoing horizon scanning- to monitor the situation and respond quickly.

Leadership of the M10 network and knowledge sharing with other CAs.

The implications of the Levelling Up White Paper have been considered by the MCA Board (March 22)

Medium (5:2=10) The Devolution White Paper has been published, 
in January 2022, and we are working through the 
impact with an initial paper to the MCA in March.

To be allocated To be allocated 30 Aug 2022 Closed: Implemented 10 Oct 2022

Preparatory work on the next phase of devolution 
deals  - Target date is for reconsideration however, 
preparatory work is likely to be longer term.

Felix Kumi-
Ampofo

Andrew Gates 30 Jun 2023

Clare Monaghan Reference: 1020    
Prefix: COR0003  

Strategic Economic Plan Due to: Resource levels, external and unanticipated
pressures    
There is a risk that: we lose focus on delivering the SEP, and
its direction of travel    
Resulting in: an inability to regenerate the economy    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Development and agreement of the Investment Strategy with the four LAs.

Borrowing powers secured to maximise funding.

The corporate policy is embedded to include its guardianship of the SEP.

Closer monitoring of the SEP outcomes, the Corporate Plan outcomes and development and delivery of 
the Business Planning framework.

Medium (5:2=10) The Business Planning process is in progress and 
the initial 2022-23 Business Plans are drafted and 
to be finalised.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 30 Aug 2022 Closed: Closed due to the passage of time 10 Jan 2023

Draft business plan, which aligns the Mayoral 
Manifesto to the existing MCA commitments has 
been prepared.  This will influence the next 
corporate plan (written early 2023) to be agreed by 
March 2023. 

Clare Monaghan Felix Kumi-
Ampofo

31 Mar 2023

Local Authorities are developing place plans 
setting out the action needed to grow their 
economy and local areas - informing the 
development of a new place based investment 
pipeline.

John Dowie Colin Blackburn 31 Mar 2024

Gareth Sutton Reference: 1113    
Prefix: COR0010  

Failure to agree Investment Strategy Due to: Failure to agree an Investment Strategy    
There is a risk that: funding is used inefficiently and
ineffectively    
Resulting in: an inability to restructure the South Yorkshire
economy.    

Medium (3:3=9) An internal cross discipline team is shaping the strategy through work with internal and external 
colleagues 

A four point engagement plan is underway with external partners 

The MCA has authorised acceptance of a borrowing cap and consents to the tabling of legislation which 
is now progessing through Parliament

An interim plan has been designed setting our core principles, indicative investment sequencing, with 
resource made available to deliver investment plans and delivery ready investments

The outcomes of the BPR workstream and steering group are beginning embedded into the overall 
Strategy

Board has approved the development of 4 individual local authority place plans and 1 region wide 
transformational plan. Revenue resource has been released to support this development.

Agree borrowing cap with HMT on an annual basis

MCA Board have agreed a phased approach to the release of Gainshare funding ahead of the 
development of the place and transformational plans

The use of new Shared Prosperity Funding is aligned to Investment Strategy activity      

Medium (3:2=6) The interim plan was formally be adopted by Board 
in March and work continues.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Jan 2022 Closed: Implemented 07 Oct 2022

Work will continue to develop Place Based 
Investment Plans and Transformational Plans

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 31 Mar 2024 Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham expect to 
complete their place plans by Q1 of the new 
financial year. The MCA is supporting Sheffield 
with its development of their plan and the MCA 
continues to develop principles for a prospectus for 
growth.

27 Feb 2023

Work will continue on the operationalisation of the 
Plans, including borrowing principles

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 30 Jun 2023 Work is underway through the SY DoF group on 
how remit cash to support investment plans

27 Feb 2023

Negotiation with HM Treasury on the borrowing 
cap for financial year 2022/23 have commenced.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 May 2022 Closed: Complete 09 Jan 2023

Proposals around the use of new Shared 
Prosperity Funding are being aligned to Investment 
Strategy activity      

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Jul 2022 Aligned 07 Oct 2022

Work is underway to make new connections with 
institutional investors.

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 30 Jun 2023 The MCA has been working with the Local Pension 
Fund and a number of private institutions with and 
expectation that we will be able to announce new 
opportunities shortly. A number of pilot schemes 
are also under development.

27 Feb 2023

Release project feasibility funding to partners and 
MCA teams

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Oct 2022 Closed: Completed 09 Jan 2023

Gareth Sutton Reference: 1134    
Prefix: COR0012  

Financial Health Due to: a lack of quantum, breadth, and flexibility of funding to
deliver on all activities    
There is a risk that: there is a unsustainable call on reserves    
Resulting in: structural funding issues being exacerbated by
the inflationary environment and disruption to commercial
income streams    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

The MCA Group undertakes annual integrated business and budget planning to ensure resource is 
effectively aligned to priorities 

The MCA Group undertakes cyclical budget monitoring to identify financial performance allowing for the 
reallocation of resource mid-year 

The MCA has undertaken a significant reserve refresh re-deploying resource to known risks and holding 
a prudent amount of resource to mitigate financial shock 

The MCA reports frequently to the Board and ensures partners remain apprised on financial matters 
through the Directors of Finance Group and Member budget engagement sessions 

The MCA Group has developed a new medium term financial strategy forecasting the requirements for 
greater local financial contributions from partners

The MCA continues to lobby government for ongoing financial support to the public transport network 
and the continuation of capacity funding for core activity alongside other peer authorities 

Medium (4:2=8) The MCA continues to lobby government for 
ongoing financial support to the public transport 
network alongside other peer authorities 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 03 Sep 2022 Closed: Combined with Action 1142 and move to a 
control

10 Jan 2023

The MCA continues to lobby government for the 
continuation of capacity funding for core activity 
alongside other peer authorities

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Combined with 1141 to create one control 10 Jan 2023

The MCA's developing Investment Strategy is 
couched within the context of the wider funding 
environment 

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 31 Mar 2023 Bulk Reassign 07 Sep 2022

The MCA has completed business planning 
exercise for the new financial year and will adjust 
over quarter 1 to take account of the outturn 
position  

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

Key medium-term risk around the future exposure 
to tram performance is being considered through 
the tram workstream

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 30 Sep 2023 On track 27 Feb 2023

Close attention is being paid to inflationary 
pressures and the impact on capital and revenue 
resource. Government have been engaged on 
capital funding pressures with in-programme 
flexibilities sought to enable the region to manage 
issues efficiently.

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 31 Mar 2023 The MCA Board has agreed to grant delegated 
authority for the flexible use of programme funding 
to help scheme sponsors manage inflationary 
pressures within programme funding envelopes.

27 Feb 2023

Agree an increase to the transport levy for fin year 
23-24

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 27 Feb 2023 Closed: Levy increase agreed 27 Feb 2023

John Dowie Reference: 1156    
Prefix: COR0014  

Enhanced Partnership - BSIP Due to: insufficient funding through BSIP    
There is a risk that: our aspirations for growing the bus
market are undermined    
Resulting in: no meaningful service improvements and
continued decline    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

 EP scheme implemented and established based on available  funding (ie no BSIP allocation)

Stakeholder comms setting expectations around deliverable improvements shared and approved 
(MCA/TEB/STOB)

Ability to add/amend EP Scheme(s) if further funding becomes available.

Formal confirmation from DfT of CRSTS capex schemes that can support bus improvement 

Successful ZEBRA bid will provide around £15m of funding for new EV fleet

National £2 fare cap initiative announced to commence Jan 2023

Created new Director of Bus Partnerships role to drive forward short term (Q1,2,3) and med term (Q2-
Q4 2023) actions drawing on experience elsewhere.

Medium (3:3=9) Formal confirmation from DfT of CRSTS schemes 
that can support bus improvement - subject to final 
approval from DfT/HMT/No10

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 30 Sep 2022 Confirmation received 30 Sep 2022

Continue to lobby DfT officials/ministers on bus 
services challenges in SY.

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2023 Meeting with DfT officials to discuss updates to the 
BSIP and indication of a round 2 of BSIP funding. 
Agreed to submit an update to the BSIP in early 
2023 following demand recovery action planning 
with the EP members in response to post Covid 
network changes

01 Dec 2022

Await outcome of LUF bid submission Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2023 Closed: DfT informed SYMCA that the LUF bid was 
not successful

02 Mar 2023

Consider further locally funded initiatives to support 
public transport delivery e.g extending £2 fare cap

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 30 Sep 2022 Closed: The £2 fare cap was introduced on 1 
November 2022 through the EP. More initiatives 
are under development as part of the demand 
recovery action plan developed through the EP.

01 Dec 2022

Create new Director of Bus Partnerships role to 
drive forward short term (Q1,2,3) and med term 
(Q2-Q4 2023) actions drawing on experience 
elsewhere.

John Dowie John Dowie 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Role has now been created - convert to 
control

11 Jan 2023

Update and refresh the Enhanced Partnership to 
include Year 1 priorities and develop and agree a 
delivery plan with bus operators and Local 
Authority partners

Nick Brown Nick Brown 31 Oct 2023

Steve Davenport Reference: 1179    
Prefix: COR0016  

Supply Chain Failure Due to: a contracted supplier entering into financial distress
and/or an insolvency event, the market being unable to
provide services, or the market being unable to deliver
services at contracted prices    
There is a risk that: the supply chain fails or is disrupted    
Resulting in: disruption to provision of service, leads to
delays, cost pressures, and reputational damage.    

Medium (3:3=9) MCA seeks to ensure a broad supplier basis through open market competition 

The MCA has access to a number of broad framework agreements to call off, in a timely fashion 

The MCA conducts pre-contract financial health due-diligence on major contracts including  seeking 
details of associated sub-contracting and proportion of delivery / contract. 

The MCA holds a prudent level of reserves to mitigate financial shock.

Standard Supplier Questionnaire completed by potential suppliers as part of the procurement process to 
ensure consistency of procurement and information provided by bidders.  Part of it is backward facing 
seeking assurance over previous experience and therefore quality, competency and financial health. 

Rules and standards are set through the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regs

Evidence sought to confirm responses e.g.  payment terms sought and Insurance levels

When bids received, further analysis is undertaken on the accounts and specifically around liquidity and 
the proportion of turnover which is MCA generated.  

The applicant is risk assessed and decisions made on that basis.

Appropriate security to cover risk is considered for example a charge may be applied on land or property 
as security for a loan.

Medium (3:2=6) Internal Audit have tested supplier resilience and 
offered a number of recommendations that will be 
implemented 

Steve Davenport Steve Davenport 31 Mar 2023 Transferred from GS 02 Mar 2023

New contract function to ensure the financial health 
of key suppliers is tested in contract as well as pre 
contract to provide early warning.

Steve Davenport Steve Davenport 30 Jun 2023 Transferred from GS 02 Mar 2023

MCA to continue to broaden its supplier base 
through more effective market engagement. 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 01 Jul 2022 Closed: Business as Usual action 09 Jan 2023

Business Continuity Plans to be re-tested for loss 
of key suppliers.

Gareth Sutton Sue Sykes 30 Jun 2023 Currently underway 09 Jan 2023

Work is ongoing with project sponsors to test the 
forecast cost of schemes effected by supply chain 
pressures.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 01 Jul 2022 Closed: Completed the evaluation and assessment 09 Jan 2023

Steve Davenport Reference: 1202    
Prefix: COR0018  

Health and Safety- Major Accident or 
Injury

Due to: A major accident or injury occurs involving SYMCA
assets and / or people    
There is a risk that: leads to regulator intervention    
Resulting in: resulting in liability and adverse impact on the
workforce, budgets and reputation of the MCA.    

Medium (5:2=10) Health and safety policy and procedures in place and audited by independent H&S advisor.

Training provided to all staff.

Appropriate maintenance contracts in place to undertake fabric and Mechanical & Electrical repairs and 
inspections as required.

Monitoring of incidents and near misses undertaken, quarterly reports presented to Management Board 
and the ASRC.

Health and Safety in Transport Deep Dive with independent members of ASRC. 

Specific Tram related H & S officer post established, which incorporates H & S in the role - post filled.

Standard contracts of employment for all SYMCA people incorporate a section on H & S responsibilities

Medium (5:1=5) Job descriptions will be amended to ensure role 
responsibilities are set out to strengthen MCA 
controls.

To be allocated To be allocated 31 Jul 2022 Closed: Role description (relates to Tram H & S) 
has been defined and the post filled.  Contracts of 
Employment, applicable to all employees, 
incorporate a section related to H&S 
responsibilities 

24 Nov 2022

Corporate Risk Register - 13 March 2023

P
age 209



Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Rebecca Bishop Reference: 1217    
Prefix: COR0020  

Organisational Capacity & Skills Due to: Inadequate organisational design, recruitment,
retention and training    
There is a risk that: the approach to resourcing is ineffective
and reactive    
Resulting in: an overstretched and under resourced workforce
incapable of meeting the organisational objectives.    

Medium (3:2=6) Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and accountabilities 
and a corporate business plan / resource plan in development to match resources to priorities.

Introduction of a HR Business Partnering approach to work closely with teams to enable early 
identification of emerging risks or issues in capacity. 

Workforce data reported to Management Board and employee engagement surveys in place to provide 
feedback from the workforce 

Medium (3:2=6) Work on alternative approaches to recruitment to 
secure talent into the organisation to be developed 
and actions agreed.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2023

Develop the Resource Strategy and approaches to 
build a pipeline of employees for the mid to long 
term. 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2023

Utilisation of the MCA entitled Apprenticeship Levy 
to be considered for growing and energising the 
resource pool for the future. 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2023 Approach to graduates and apps is under review 
and will be further considered by the Leadership 
Centre as part of the wider Review

10 Nov 2022

An organisational review is underway which will 
test the resourcing model.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2023 Links into the organisational Review 10 Nov 2022

Appointment of a HR Director (that will take 
responsibility for the actions once in post)

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 12 Jan 2023

Low

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Gareth Sutton Reference: 1146    
Prefix: COR0013  

Borrowing leads to financial risk Due to: new borrowing vires    
There is a risk that: the MCA is exposed to new financial risk
around exposure to interest rates and debt management and
also a new compliance regime    
Resulting in: HM Treasury consents for annual borrowing
caps being required    

Medium (3:2=6) The MCA sets an Annual Treasury Management Strategy that is scrutinised by the Audit Committee and 
approved by Board. This governs its approach to borrowing and debt 

The MCA ensures it has access to professional support via a contracted arrangement with SCC and 
Link Treasury Advisors, and internally through officers with appropriate qualifications

The MCA reports on its Treasury performance to Audit Committee and Board through a forward, 
backward and mid-year review 

The MCA has developed good working relationships with HM Treasury officers and negotiated an initial 
borrowing cap.

The SY Directors of Finance Group has developed a number of principles around borrowing for the 
Investment Strategy activity that will need to be ratified by the Board.

The MCA has designed a new Treasury Management Strategy for the year that has been approved by 
the Audit and Standards Committee 

Low (2:2=4) The MCA is shaping its approach to its new 
borrowing vires through the Investment Strategy 
work

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

The MCA has engaged with HM Treasury to begin 
its second round of borrowing cap negotiations 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

The MCA has re-set the role of SCC in supporting 
its borrowing activity  

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

The MCA has engaged government on its latest 
Capital Financing Framework consultation

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

The MCA has designed a new Treasury 
Management Strategy for the year that has been 
approved by the Audit and Standards Committee 

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Mar 2022 Bulk Reassign 07 Sep 2022

 The MCA will be presented with borrowing 
principles for the Investment Strategy in July

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 31 Jul 2022 Closed: Complete 07 Oct 2022

The MCA to recruit a new Senior Finance Manager 
with appropriate Treasury Management experience

Gareth Sutton Mike Thomas 30 Jun 2023 In progress, aimed to recruit into the specified role 
and this has not yet been successful.

09 Jan 2023

Martin Swales Reference: 1209    
Prefix: COR0019  

Post Integration Embedding of 
Organisational Design

Due to: staff understanding of roles and responsibilities in the
new organisation structure    
There is a risk that: there remains uncertainty about the
structure, processes and respective roles of staff    
Resulting in: a loss of momentum in delivering organisational
goals.    

Medium (3:3=9) structure developed, agreed and communicated.

operating model to shape internal responsibilities and ways of working agreed and communicated

Corporate Plan being updated and revised to provide clarity of outcomes, priorities and accountabilities

Annual business planning cycle will consider any resourcing gaps or risk areas

Management development has commenced with two sessions having taken place to May 2022.   

Low (2:2=4) Work on corporate culture and values in process of 
being designed and delivered

Clare Monaghan Clare Monaghan 31 Mar 2023 Restructure 06 Oct 2022

Work on a Management Offer outlined to the 
organisation will be implemented and monitored.

Clare Monaghan Clare Monaghan 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Superseded by Organisational Review 
work and OD plans.

10 Mar 2023

Corporate Risk Register - 13 March 2023

P
age 210



South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
Directorate Risk Dashboard – March 2023

Resources & Investment Directorate Strategy & Development Directorate

Infrastructure & Place Directorate Business & Skills Directorate

No. of H & S ‘themed’ risks scoring 5 or above = 5 (plus 1 at Corporate level)

No. of H & S ‘themed’ risks scoring 5 or above = 14

No. of H & S ‘themed’ risks scoring 5 or above = 0

No. of H & S ‘themed’ risks scoring 5 or above = 0

Directorate risks are defined as risks specific to SYMCA teams and can be reflective of objectives, business plans, processes and operating environments. 

0 10 20 30 40

Housing & Infrastructure

Net Zero

Public Transport…

Public Transport…

Strategic Transport

Risks by Team and Score

Low Medium Medium/High High

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Low Medium Med/High High

Volume of Risks by Risk Score

0 10 20 30 40

Finance
Human Resources

IT
Legal & Gov

PCPC
Asset Mgmt and Facil

PMO

Risk by Team and Score

Low Medium Med/High High
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Low Medium Med/High High

Volume of Risks by Risk Score

0 10 20 30 40

Mayor's Office
Marketing &…

Ext Affairs
Data Intelligence

Assurance and Evaluation
Corporate Policy

Business Operations Team

Risk by Team and Score

Low Med Med/High High

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Low Med Med/High High

Volume of Risks by Risk Score

0 10 20 30 40

Trade & Investment

Business & Skills Innovation

Skills & Employment

Development & Business
Support

Risks by Team and by Score

Low Med Med/High High
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Low Medium Med/High High

Volume of Risks by Risk Score

P
age 211



Medium/High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Adam Greenwood Reference: 2176  
Prefix: OP0191  

AEB - Workforce Due to: Resource levels and ways or working including
recruitment and retention are considered to be insufficient    
There is a risk that: the MCA cannot effectively procure and
deliver its obligations as part of the devolution deal    
Resulting in: the residents are unable to access training
opportunities aligned to MCA's strategic ambitions and
affecting the relationships the MCA has developed with the
providers and partners.    

High (5:5=25) AEB team remain vocal about resourcing needs to ensure continued provision and avoiding drops in 
service levels

Management and maintenance of two (2) centralised AEB inboxes which receive contract enquiries and 
general enquiries around AEB.

The volume of employees devoted to skills and employment (incl AEB) has been increased and is 
included in the organisational structure.

Business cycle, setting out the process and which team does what and when, is in place and 
maintained.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Reassess skills gap analysis in light of employee 
exit and future ambition for AEB to facilitate 
resourcing decisions and plans.

Adam Greenwood Adam Greenwood 31 Oct 2022 Closed: A Resource Plan has been developed to 
identify needs of the business.

20 Dec 2022

Recruit and appointment AEB staff within 
Education & Skills area to lead on the work

Jim Dillon Adam Greenwood 31 Oct 2022 Closed: Two AEB specialist staff recruited to start 
by 1st February 2023

28 Nov 2022

Seeking resources across MCA and region to 
support ongoing work in the short term

Adam Greenwood Adam Greenwood 31 Oct 2022 Closed: Action too vague - closed 05 Jan 2023

Review of business cycle document to assess 
points in the process where there may be a 
workforce shortfall 

Adam Greenwood Adam Greenwood 31 Oct 2022 Closed: Business cycle document completed by 
PMO. AEB resourcing paper developed by Ruth 
setting out additional resourcing needed 
organisationally

05 Jan 2023

A resource Plan has been developed and 
recruitment into the posts is ongoing, onboarding 
individuals is taking place to induct into the MCA

Adam Greenwood Adam Greenwood 31 Mar 2023 action underway 11 Jan 2023

The internally focused business cycle is to be 
refreshed to create a version for publication to 
communicate the MCA's commitment to partners.

Pippa Proctor Andrew Heseltine 30 Aug 2023 Closed: AEB Business Cycle - it was agreed that 
the AEB business cycled wouldn't be published for 
MCA partners until the MCA was fully resourced 
and in a position to fulfil our commitments under 
the cycle and was to be reviewed/revisited in Q1 
23/24 year  

11 Jan 2023

Business & Skills Directorate

P
age 212



High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Tim Taylor Reference: 1975  
Prefix: OP0151  

Declining Patronage (463) Due to: declining quality and provision of bus services plus
societal change    
There is a risk that: patronage continues to decline    
Resulting in: increased support costs and subsidy
requirements and potential further reduction of services and
quality    

High (5:5=25) Enhanced concession/discount schemes implemented to promote public transport usage

Patronage data (actuals and forecast) reviewed on a quarterly basis, with action plans developed to 
reverse trend.

Research commissioned to investigate underlying causes of patronage decline

Robust patronage forecast developed for each mode of transport and linked to transport operator plans 
(inc bus partnerships)

Rolling DfT funding package agreed to support pre-March 2020 network

Service development plans aligned to patronage forecasts and regional/local transport strategies and 
annual budget setting process.

High (5:4=20) Conduct network review of bus services to agree 
scope of both supported and commercial services 
and associated financial support based on post-
COVID passenger numbers (and in the absence of 
government support).

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 12 Apr 2023 Tender award recommendation date agreed. 27 Jan 2023

Negotiate extension of network with bus operators 
to allow a considered approach to network 
changes if government funding support ends

Tim Taylor Andy Wright 30 Jun 2023 Funding now extended to 30 June 2023. 23 Feb 2023

Review medium/long term impacts of COVID- 19 
and bus usage and funding requirements

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Mar 2023 Action extended to reflect new funding window. 10 Oct 2022

Agree with ED's and Leaders approach to tendered 
services from 23 July following BRG extension to 
30 June 2023.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 14 Apr 2023 Meetings arranged in Feb and March with ED and 
LA Leaders

23 Feb 2023

John Dowie Reference: 2007  
Prefix: OP0156  

Application of Regional Policies Due to: Inconsistent application of regional policies    
There is a risk that: efficient bus operation is undermined and
leads to continued usage of cars and patronage decline    
Resulting in: further network reductions, an increase in the
number of isolated communities and failing to deliver the
policy aspirations set out in our SEP. e.g. free car parking
undermines net zero and public transport aspirations.    

High (4:5=20)  Meetings with Leaders and CEXs to reinforce the importance of a supportive policy environment

Working with wider stakeholders to identify and reinforce the benefits of enabling efficient bus operation

 Inclusion of pro bus policies in our implementation plans

High (4:4=16) Work with Leaders to develop and apply pro bus 
policies 

John Dowie John Dowie 28 Feb 2026

 Work with Government and stakeholders to 
demonstrate and foster support to influence the 
approaches in the region.

Chloe Shepherd Chloe Shepherd 28 Feb 2026

Work with bus (and other e.g. tram, active travel) 
operators to influence and engage in the delivery of 
our plans

Chloe Shepherd Chloe Shepherd 28 Feb 2026

Medium/High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Tim Taylor Reference: 1393  
Prefix: OP0030  

Road Traffic Collision at Bernard Road 
Junction (552)

Due to: the number of near miss incidents reported    
There is a risk that: there will be an actual Road Traffic
Collision at Bernard Road junction    
Resulting in: fatality and/or serious injury and damage to tram
vehicle and/or infrastructure    

High (5:4=20) Compulsory warning in place for all tram drivers

Self seeded trees and vegetation regularly cleared to improve sight lines at the junction

Tram speed limit reduced over the junction.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Tram Concession Manager to chase up results of 
traffic surveys carried out by Sheffield City Council 
in order to develop a VISSIM model for the 
junction.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

31 Oct 2022 Closed: Traffic surveys completed and contractor 
employed by SCC to do traffic modelling.

03 Nov 2022

Work in partnership with LRSSB to develop safety 
information detailing the risks of red light running

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

01 Dec 2022 Closed: LRSSB videos produced. 25 Nov 2022

SCC to complete traffic modelling in order to 
determine if Traffic signal timings can be adjusted 
without wider impact on traffic flows.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

05 Dec 2022 Closed: Traffic Modelling completed and results 
shared by SCC.

13 Dec 2022

SYMCA, SCC and SYSL to share videos produced 
by LRSSB on their Social media channels in order 
to highlight the issues of highway safety.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2022 Closed: action complete. 27 Jan 2023

SYMCA to agree with SCC next steps regarding 
opportunity to look at changes to junction timings.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 30 Mar 2023 John Dowie written to Kate Martin on the risk. 
Awaiting meeting between SYMCA and SCC to 
discuss.

23 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1400  
Prefix: OP0032  

Balance Anchor Weight Failures (553) Due to: failures with no root cause    
There is a risk that: there will be further balance anchor
weight system failures    
Resulting in: serious injury or fatality and service disruption  

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Risk assessment carried out by SYSL to ensure controls put in place Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

SYSL to develop a risk based plan for replacement 
of Balance Anchor Weights with Tensorex

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

30 Sep 2022 Closed: Costed Plan presented by SYSL. 11 Oct 2022

Work with SYSL to deliver the risk based removal 
of the balance anchor weight system and 
replacement with Tensorex

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 21 Mar 2024 Work programme agreed with SYSL as well as 
cost sharing.

27 Jan 2023

SYSL to carry out survey of Balance Anchor weight 
tensions to support procurement of contractor and 
Tensorex devices.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 01 Apr 2023 Work has commenced 24 Feb 2023

Pat Beijer Reference: 1479  
Prefix: OP0046  

Inability to think strategically (523) Due to: Inability to develop existing resources to migrate from
day to day thinking to strategic thinking or to attract strategic
calibre recruits, owing to relatively low salaries in a
candidates' market, to support major public transport change
programmes    
There is a risk that: the development programmes around bus
and light rail will not be supported by the right calibre
resource to successfully deliver these high profile
programmes    
Resulting in: an impact on programme, time, other existing
resource and quality of the delivery of the light rail
development and bus franchising programmes    

High (5:4=20) Major Projects: Appointment of senior project lead roles to oversee major projects such as Bus 
Franchising and Tram End of Concession. Job descriptions written to build a more strategically 
competent team to support these lead roles.

Public Transport Capital Projects: Pro-active encouragement of permanent establishment team 
members to explore and get involved in development opportunities arising from the major projects. 

Inclusion of the strategic resource requirements for major programmes identified in Business Plan 2022-
23

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Consider appropriate additional strategic resource 
support, identify individuals with the ability and 
willingness to pursue personal development 
opportunities that will over time support the 
requirements 

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2023 Actions are ongoing as the need for strategic 
resource remains critical for major programmes. 
Therefore it is proposed that this is reviewed on a 
six-monthly basis.

01 Dec 2022

Ensure all options to attract the right calibre 
persons for the roles are explored with HR, which 
may at times mean looking for secondments or 
interim headhunting agency options

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 30 Jun 2023

John Dowie Reference: 1491  
Prefix: OP0049  

Organisational agility to respond to 
people resource needs (517)

Due to: Tight labour market conditions (candidate's market),
relatively uncompetitive public sector salaries, stringent public
sector processes for recruitment and procurement (including
approvals)    
There is a risk that: Being unable to acquire required
additional resources in time and to budget    
Resulting in: The hard deadlines and other critical success
factors of major programmes not being achieved    

High (5:4=20) People resource, procurement and budget requirements included in the Infrastructure & Place plan and 
the Public Transport Development Business Plan specifically for 2022-23

Close liaison with support services (HR, legal, PCPC) to highlight the criticality of resource requirements 
for time-critical programmes and seek to accelerate the process of populating roles

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Ensure appropriate specialists are recruited and/or 
trained. 

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2023 Good progress now made with populating tram 
mobilisation project team, some more progress 
expected imminently. Still some further people 
resource to be secured for both tram and 
franchising projects

02 Mar 2023

In the business planning process, ensure resource 
needs are clearly defined and budget is identified 
from vacancies. 

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2022 Closed: Resource and budgets needs identified in 
Business Plan 2022-23

01 Dec 2022

In the business planning process for 2023-24, 
ensure resource needs are clearly defined and 
budget is identified from vacancies.

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 31 Mar 2023

Pat Beijer Reference: 1550  
Prefix: OP0065  

Inability to fund the costs of tram asset 
renewal (462)

Due to: not being able to identify suitable funding sources to
renew the life-expired trams assets    
There is a risk that: tram infrastructure and vehicles cannot be
life-extended or replaced and that ongoing asset
management requirements will be unsupported    
Resulting in: deterioration in service and/or potential
unplanned disruption to service    

High (5:4=20) Development of Mass Transit OBC to achieve programme entry to allow the case for investment to be 
made in the tram system

Engagement with DfT around the process for OBC submission to ensure that the funding requirements 
are understood

Light rail funding requirements are included in as many capital bid programmes as possible (£100m 
CRSTS secured).

A capital investment prioritisation approach for the light rail asset renewal requirements has been 
developed, which reflects the shorter term operationally critical renewal requirements and allows for the 
longer term requirements to be identified through the asset condition assessment work for the Mass 
Transit OBC and FBC).

Agreement with the DfT on early (pre-OBC submission and approval) drawdown of CRSTS funding to 
mobilise and implement the most pressing asset renewal requirements 

£100m secured from CRSTS funding to implement part of the full infrastructure and tram vehicle renewal

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Identification of repairs and maintenance 
requirements that are linked to the budget process.

Pat Beijer Chris Coleman 31 Mar 2023 Earlier renewal requirements for infrastructure and 
vehicles have been identified through ongoing 
contract management with the operator SYSL 
(trolley runs, vehicle inspections etc). These are 
being linked to requests from DfT for an early 
drawdown of CRSTS capital investment (before 
OBC submission), to create the budget for 
mobilisation and early implementation of renewal 
works.

01 Dec 2022

Report variations to the Asset Register, missing or 
broken assets and that appropriate and timely 
actions are taken to record and deal with the issue.

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 30 Sep 2022 Closed: It has been agreed that once the asset 
condition has been fully assessed, as part of the 
End of Concession mobilisation work, an asset 
management system for tram will be developed. 
Therefore a more relevant action has been 
included in the risk register to replace this action.

01 Dec 2022

Submit bid to DfT Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 02 Jun 2023

Develop a new asset management system for tram 
assets, which identifies ongoing asset renewal 
requirements once the significant renewal 
programme is concluded, and is linked to the 
SYMCA Asset Register

Pat Beijer Peter Elliott 30 Apr 2024 This project is being led by Peter Elliott and the PM 
is Andrew Parry.

06 Dec 2022

Pat Beijer Reference: 1563  
Prefix: OP0068  

Disruption due to concession handback 
(514)

Due to: weak contractual controls around co-operation and
obligations at handback    
There is a risk that: the handback is disruptive    
Resulting in: cessation of the light rail system, liability for
infrastructure and reputational damage    

High (5:4=20) Financial evaluation to understand financial impact taken place.

Review of the current Concession Agreement has identified strength areas and points of weakness.

Resource planning and need has been identified as part of the 2022/23 Business Plan.

Oversight strengthened through the fortnightly meeting with the CEO and wider MCA Management 
Board members.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Develop a Transition Agreement which provides 
appropriate terms and conditions, that sets out the 
approach to handback.

Chris Coleman Chris Coleman 30 Jun 2023 Discussions have commenced with Stagecoach via 
the Transition Agreement.  A list of priority items 
have been agreed and both parties are working 
through the list of items.  This work will continue 
through to March 2024, when the transfer to 
NewCo takes place.  Review update June 2023

20 Dec 2022

Engagement with SYSL to understand current 
scale of sub-contracting. Analysis of risk and 
impact of these contracts. Risk will not materialise 
until nearer the end of the concession- to 
commence as part of the delivery programme.

Chris Coleman Chris Coleman 31 Mar 2023 Procurement job profile created and recruitment 
started but no candidate secured yet

02 Mar 2023

Commence implementation of the Mobilisation 
programme delivery once the future operating 
model is confirmed by the MCA in July 2022.

Chris Coleman Chris Coleman 30 Apr 2023 Programme Manager started work for the project 
on 1 March 2023, tasked with developing a 
detailed work plan

02 Mar 2023

Colin Blackburn Reference: 1806  
Prefix: OP0114  

Cost inflation Due to: weak economy, inflation and a lack of materials and
skills' supplies    
There is a risk that: capital schemes' costs rise    
Resulting in: schemes become more unviable and requiring
greater SYMCA funding and investment to enable them to be
delivered    

High (5:5=25) Filter out more effectively poor schemes at an early stage

co-design pipelines and schemes with LAs utilising SYMCA feasibility funding

build greater cost contingency into schemes 

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Colin Blackburn Reference: 1814  
Prefix: OP0116  

Sporadic Funding Opportunities Due to: the Government's short term competitive programme
funding approach    
There is a risk that: We chase funding multiple small funding
opportunities rather than being able to take a strategic
approach    
Resulting in: greater proportional resources implications
applying and delivering multiple funding opportunities inability
achieve the SEPs strategic ambitions and goals    

High (4:4=16) we adopt an effective and prioritised SYMCA investment strategy and only apply for funding 
opportunities that will clearly contribute to delivering strategic priorities

seek further devolution of housing and infrastructure funding from Government

Medium/High 
(4:3=12)

Rebecca Roe Reference: 1918  
Prefix: OP0135  

Dilapidated Connect Totems - Sheffield 
City Centre (547)

Due to: the age of the Connect Totems in the Sheffield City
Centre, with obsolete live departure displays, unavailable
parts and inefficient information production    
There is a risk that: the live departure displays and other
components will fail and are unfixable    
Resulting in: long term outages on live departure displays, or
inability to post new information leading to poor customer
experience, increased customer complaints and increased
financial costs for repair/replacement    

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

Adequate stocks of spares are kept available to minimise outage duration, in addition it is being looked 
at to utilise totems at stops no longer in use to 'cannibalise' parts

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

A project is planned to look at the replacement of 
totems and at information as a whole in Sheffield 
City Centre.  The current information is paper 
based and inefficient to produce, therefore it is 
being looked at to provide fully digital information 
at these stops and other city centre locations to 
ensure the correct information is provided at key 
locations, efficiently and accurately.  Project yet to 
start,

Rebecca Roe Rebecca Roe 30 Nov 2024 No further progress 27 Feb 2023

Infrastructure & Place Directorate

P
age 213



Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

John Dowie Reference: 1992  
Prefix: OP0153  

Net Zero - MCA Operation Due to: Physical changes to the environment which may
impact the organisation including: • Acute – extreme weather
events, which may cause damage to buildings. • Chronic –
slow changes such as sea level rise, changes to ambient
temperatures or levels of rainfall.    
There is a risk that: These events lead to interrupted service
delivery    
Resulting in: Delays and disruption to the work of the MCA.    

High (4:4=16) Existing business continuity plans are in place and reviewed for relevance regularly.

A Business Continuity Working Group has been established and meets regularly to consider 
arrangements.

The pandemic response protocols can be adapted for use in adverse weather events.

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

commission a climate impact assessment on the 
MCAs facilities.

Richard Sulley Richard Sulley 30 Sep 2023 Budget requirements under consideration for 
23/24. Recruitment activity underway to build 
capacity within the Net Zero team. Conversations 
underway with academics to explore delivery 
methods.

13 Mar 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1993  
Prefix: OP0154  

Third Party Reliance on Bus Operators 
to deliver Net Zero targets

Due to: The Region's bus services being largely operated on
a commercial basis    
There is a risk that: leading to compromise and a limited
ability to shape the network and fleet    
Resulting in: challenges in delivering our strategic priorities in
relation to zero emissions buses by 2040    

High (5:4=20) Engagement with operators to deliver an Enhanced Partnership

Engagement with DfT to secure funding 

Decision taken to conduct a franchising assessment

Employees are aware of the State Aid rules and seek advice and guidance from legal colleagues as the 
need arises.

Early engagement with operators and legal colleagues to identify levels of funding and specific risk 
relating to a scheme.

Funding tapers are applied to each application to ensure remain within the law

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Continue with the development and delivery of the 
Enhanced Partnership to deliver short term 
improvements

Nick Brown Nick Brown 04 Oct 2022

Undertake a Franchising Assessment to develop a 
longer term solution and gain additional control 
over the bus network

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 04 Oct 2022

Agree with ED's and Leaders approach to tendered 
services from 23 July following BRG extension to 
30 June 2023.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 14 Apr 2023 Meetings arranged in Feb and March with ED and 
LA Leaders

23 Feb 2023

Gareth Sutton Reference: 2023  
Prefix: OP0159  

Net Zero - increasing cost and devalued 
investments

Due to: The impacts of a changing climate and the need to
move to a low carbon economy    
There is a risk that: the MCA will be exposed to increased
lifecycle costs, additional mitigation costs and decreased
value of investments.    
Resulting in: additional pressures on budgets and reduced
financial performance of the MCA    

High (4:4=16) Existing business planning and budget controls are in place to minimise financial exposure to the MCA Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

commission a climate impact assessment on the 
MCAs facilities.

Richard Sulley Richard Sulley 30 Sep 2023 Budget requirements under consideration for 
23/24. Recruitment activity underway to build 
capacity within the Net Zero team. Conversations 
underway with academics to explore delivery 
methods.

13 Mar 2023

Produce a costed proposal for the MCAs facilities 
to move to a low/zero carbon operation.

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 31 Dec 2023 Work underway regarding approach to developing 
a net zero pathway document to define actions 
required.

13 Mar 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 2293  
Prefix: OP0206  

Tram Structures Inspections Identify 
Significant Remedial actions

Due to: Aging of the structures    
There is a risk that: structures inspections start to identify the
need for significant remedial works    
Resulting in: significant spend and/or suspension of tram
services whilst works are carried out.    

High (5:5=25) Detailed and General Inspections carried out in line with the requirements detailed in the Design Manual 
For Roads and Bridges (DMRB) so any potential issues should be identified and actioned.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

More detailed bearings inspection to be carried out 
by AECOM on Commercial Street bridge.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

29 Nov 2022 Closed: More detailed inspection completed on 
7/12/2022

13 Dec 2022

Ensure all structures inspections due in 2022/23 
are compete.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Mar 2023

Ensure structures inspections for 2023/24 are 
procured.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 01 May 2023

Detailed Inspection Report received from AECOM 
for Commercial street Bridge

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 15 Dec 2022 Closed: Covered by other actions 27 Jan 2023

AECOM to advise on next steps regarding the 
bearing at Commercial Street Bridge.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Mar 2023 Awaiting inspection report. 

The consequences of the failed fixed bearing will 
have zero impact on passenger or network safety. 
The bridge is now effectively restrained 
longitudinally by the west abutment and restrained 
transversely by the functioning transverse 
bearings.

No major engineering works to be carried out on 
the structure (such as track replacement) without 
further assessment. Please refer all engineering 
works to this and the adjacent structures to Aecom 
for review prior to starting.

27 Jan 2023

Infrastructure & Place Directorate

P
age 214



Medium/High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Mike Thomas Reference: 1302  
Prefix: OP0020  

Exposure to the commercial 
performance of the transport network

Due to: the systemic loss of commercial viability in the South
Yorkshire transport network as a result of patronage
reductions    
There is a risk that: the sector will require greater public
subsidy in a period of financial fragility    
Resulting in: budgetary pressures on the MCA. Re-
franchising of the Supertram mass-transit light-rail system in
2024 exposes the Group to commercial risk that it is has
previously been shielded from.    

High (5:5=25) Following ongoing engagement with the Department for Transport, Government support for both bus 
and tram has been guaranteed to the end of the financial year 2022/23.     

The Group's Medium Term Financial Strategy is predicated on the use of reserves to mitigate key 
financial risks. Members have approved the preferred operating model for the tram system at the end of 
the current concession. An efficient cost model, which has been developed as part of the Mass Transit 
OBC work, is being refined further, and this model will help to mitigate operational risk as well as shield 
the MCA from financial shock.

The MCA Board has agreed to invest additional resources, including reserves, gainshare and surplus 
investment income, to support public transport. Recent measures include the early introduction of £2 
fare-capping ahead of the central government initiative, and also the tendering of previously commercial 
non-statutory school services for the next two academic years. 

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

This position is being constantly monitored and will 
be subject to a specific review as part of the Rev 1 
& 2 process.  

Mike Thomas Mike Thomas 30 Sep 2022 Closed: Action completed - Rev 2 report has now 
been finalised

01 Nov 2022

Consultation has began with SY Districts to 
potentially raise the 23/24 Levy in order to mitigate 
against these pressures. 

Mike Thomas Mike Thomas 16 Jan 2023 Closed: All Leaders have now confirmed 
acceptance of a 2% increase in the transport levy.

11 Jan 2023

Explore options for capitalising tram operating 
losses 

Mike Thomas Mike Thomas 30 Sep 2023 External audit have been engaged on the proposed 
approach to capitalising tram losses. 

27 Feb 2023

Continue to lobby government for continuation of 
funding for bus and tram.

Gareth Sutton Gareth Sutton 30 Jun 2023 Funding for the bus network has now been 
extended to June 2023. Officer and members are 
now considering a new financial strategy.

27 Feb 2023

Nick Brailsford Reference: 1360  
Prefix: OP0026  

Lack of Common Standards Due to: Different platforms being used    
There is a risk that: The organisation has pockets of areas
that use different ways for working    
Resulting in: incompatible documents, increased volumes of
workloads as employees utilise non secure ways of working
resulting in data breaches and reputation damage    

High (5:5=25)  Web filtering in place restricting access to unapproved sites and tools e.g. drop box

Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, installed and always evolving to address current threats, covers 
email filtering to identify and block impersonators and filtering attachments for abnormalities for the IT 
team to check prior to release.

Mgmt Board have agreed the web categories to be used for content filtering.

Access requests and web filtering to the IT team for approval takes place where employees wish to 
access web sites/documents in third party sites.

Achievement of Cyber Essentials 

The common standard has been agreed upon as part of the CE accreditation.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

An agreed common standard to be defined and 
agreed.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Common standard has been agreed as 
part of the CE accreditation 

12 Jan 2023

Mgmt Board to consider the need for a Chief 
Information Officer to champion technical 
standards and data security.

Gareth Sutton Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Recruitment to Head Of IT to take place.  Currently 
sat with HR 

12 Jan 2023

IT are working with the Learning and Development 
team to define and deliver the training 
requirements for employees across the MCA. 

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Phishing campaign completed. Results being 
analysed. Further preventative actions to be 
agreed by ELB.

15 Feb 2023

Data sharing agreements to be defined with 
partners that set out the agreed parameters of data 
use. Working with the Governance Team

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023

To agree the Statement of Works, which has been 
prepared to bring in consultancy services to 
facilitate the application the additional controls 
within the MS Tenant  

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 The Director of Finance and Resources has 
approved the funding to proceed with this project. 

12 Jan 2023

Nick Brailsford Reference: 1370  
Prefix: OP0027  

Operational Use of Non-corporate IT 
Business Tools 

Due to: Not using corporate agreed software or standards.    
There is a risk that: Unsupported legacy software / ways of
working continue eg sharing files via email and printing    
Resulting in: Data loss, security breaches, increased storage
and resource costs and ineffective and inefficient operations.  

High (4:4=16) The IT team steer and make recommendations to employees, when asked, to facilitate the use of 
effective tools.

Web filtering in place, which restricts access to unapproved sites and information sharing platforms e.g. 
drop box.

Mimecast installed for sharing large files, email filtering

Physical and access controls in place.

Cyber Essentials Accreditation has been obtained which shows that the organisation has controls in 
place.

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

An agreed common standard to be defined and 
agreed.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Approval to implement tighter controls around the 
use of SharePoint has been given.  

12 Jan 2023

 IT are working with the Learning and Development 
team to define and deliver the training 
requirements for employees across the MCA. 

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023

gmt Board to consider the need for a Chief 
Information Officer to champion technical 
standards and data security.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Recruitment for Head of IT is with HR 12 Jan 2023

Data sharing agreements to be defined with 
partners that set out the agreed parameters of data 
use.

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023

 Statement of Works prepared to bring in 
consultancy services to facilitate application of 
additional controls 

Nick Brailsford Nick Brailsford 31 Mar 2023 Approval to implement this has been given. 12 Jan 2023

Sue Sykes Reference: 1688  
Prefix: OP0091  

Programme Slippage Due to: Slippage in programme and project delivery    
There is a risk that: the MCA could lose existing and future
funding    
Resulting in: reputational damage and financial
unsustainability.    

High (5:4=20) PMO function established to work with partners to support timely project development and delivery.

Critical path analysis of bid submissions and business cases.

Quarterly monitoring of grant funding and contracted provision.

Established change control process internally and with sponsor government bodies.
.  
.  

 Performance reporting to thematic boards.

Thematic board papers include reference to risks and issues.

Medium/High 
(4:3=12)

PCPC and PMO Business Partner approach to be 
operated to proactively identify risks associated 
with programmes and projects.
.

Sue Sykes Charli Taylor 31 Mar 2023 On-trsck 24 Feb 2023

Implementation and role out of the Verto 
Programme Management System.

Sue Sykes Sue Sykes 31 Mar 2023 On Track 24 Feb 2023

PMO business partners recruited and fully 
operational to work to improve timing and quality of 
delivery of the business cases for projects.

Laurie Thomas Laurie Thomas 31 Mar 2023 Closed: All PMO business partners in post and 
operational.

06 Feb 2023

Agreement of the proposed new Assurance 
framework for financial year 23/24.

Felix Kumi-
Ampofo

Felix Kumi-
Ampofo

31 Mar 2023 Engagement rounds have been undertaken with all 
LAs and the MCA Board will receive a proposal on 
the 6th March 23.

27 Feb 2023

Resource & Investment

P
age 215



Medium/High

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Tim Taylor Reference: 1393  
Prefix: OP0030  

Road Traffic Collision at Bernard Road 
Junction (552)

Due to: the number of near miss incidents reported    
There is a risk that: there will be an actual Road Traffic
Collision at Bernard Road junction    
Resulting in: fatality and/or serious injury and damage to tram
vehicle and/or infrastructure    

High (5:4=20) Compulsory warning in place for all tram drivers

Self seeded trees and vegetation regularly cleared to improve sight lines at the junction

Tram speed limit reduced over the junction.

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Tram Concession Manager to chase up results of 
traffic surveys carried out by Sheffield City Council 
in order to develop a VISSIM model for the 
junction.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

31 Oct 2022 Closed: Traffic surveys completed and contractor 
employed by SCC to do traffic modelling.

03 Nov 2022

Work in partnership with LRSSB to develop safety 
information detailing the risks of red light running

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

01 Dec 2022 Closed: LRSSB videos produced. 25 Nov 2022

SCC to complete traffic modelling in order to 
determine if Traffic signal timings can be adjusted 
without wider impact on traffic flows.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

05 Dec 2022 Closed: Traffic Modelling completed and results 
shared by SCC.

13 Dec 2022

SYMCA, SCC and SYSL to share videos produced 
by LRSSB on their Social media channels in order 
to highlight the issues of highway safety.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2022 Closed: action complete. 27 Jan 2023

SYMCA to agree with SCC next steps regarding 
opportunity to look at changes to junction timings.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 30 Mar 2023 John Dowie written to Kate Martin on the risk. 
Awaiting meeting between SYMCA and SCC to 
discuss.

23 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1400  
Prefix: OP0032  

Balance Anchor Weight Failures (553) Due to: failures with no root cause    
There is a risk that: there will be further balance anchor
weight system failures    
Resulting in: serious injury or fatality and service disruption  

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Risk assessment carried out by SYSL to ensure controls put in place Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

SYSL to develop a risk based plan for replacement 
of Balance Anchor Weights with Tensorex

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

30 Sep 2022 Closed: Costed Plan presented by SYSL. 11 Oct 2022

Work with SYSL to deliver the risk based removal 
of the balance anchor weight system and 
replacement with Tensorex

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 21 Mar 2024 Work programme agreed with SYSL as well as 
cost sharing.

27 Jan 2023

SYSL to carry out survey of Balance Anchor weight 
tensions to support procurement of contractor and 
Tensorex devices.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 01 Apr 2023 Work has commenced 24 Feb 2023

Medium

Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Steve Davenport Reference: 1202    
Prefix: COR0018  

Health and Safety- Major Accident or 
Injury

Due to: A major accident or injury occurs involving SYMCA
assets and / or people    
There is a risk that: leads to regulator intervention    
Resulting in: resulting in liability and adverse impact on the
workforce, budgets and reputation of the MCA.    

Medium (5:2=10) Health and safety policy and procedures in place and audited by independent H&S advisor.

Training provided to all staff.

Appropriate maintenance contracts in place to undertake fabric and Mechanical & Electrical repairs and 
inspections as required.

Monitoring of incidents and near misses undertaken, quarterly reports presented to Management Board 
and the ASRC.

Health and Safety in Transport Deep Dive with independent members of ASRC. 

Specific Tram related H & S officer post established, which incorporates H & S in the role - post filled.

Standard contracts of employment for all SYMCA people incorporate a section on H & S responsibilities

Medium (5:1=5) Job descriptions will be amended to ensure role 
responsibilities are set out to strengthen MCA 
controls.

To be allocated To be allocated 31 Jul 2022 Closed: Role description (relates to Tram H & S) 
has been defined and the post filled.  Contracts of 
Employment, applicable to all employees, 
incorporate a section related to H&S 
responsibilities 

24 Nov 2022

Tim Taylor Reference: 1387  
Prefix: OP0029  

Tramway highway interface (436) Due to: improperly designed, constructed or maintained tram
rails or other infrastructure integrated into the highway    
There is a risk that: road users may not be safe    
Resulting in: remedial work, accidents causing serious injury
or fatalities and claims against the MCA    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Supertram is authorised by statute to be present in its position

SYSL and SYPTE liaise with Sheffield CC as Highway Authority to monitor accident statistics to identify 
key hotspots and understand where additional controls could be implemented

SYSL carry out regular track patrols to check on any defects. Maintenance responsibility falls to SYSL.

Continue to liaise with partners (Sheffield City Council and SYSL) through the MoU to ensure high risk 
sites identified and mitigation introduced if required

Medium (5:2=10) Continue to liaise with partners (Sheffield City 
Council and SYSL) through the MoU to ensure 
high risk sites identified and mitigation introduced if 
required

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Action to engage with partners now 
transferred to a control

27 Jan 2023

Use capital funding (CRSTS etc.) to improve 
known hot spots.

Peter Elliott Peter Elliott 30 Jun 2023 Closed: Moved to control 24 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1408  
Prefix: OP0033  

Failure of post tensioned structures on 
Supertram (528)

Due to: age and deterioration    
There is a risk that: post tensioned structures fail    
Resulting in: possible fatalities, injury or loss of service  

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Ongoing principle inspections

The structures were constructed in the mid 90's when there was more understanding regarding the risks 
of post tensioned structures and better controls on workmanship. Additionally the structures are not that 
old compared to other post tensioned structures within the UK

Medium (5:2=10) Act on the results from the special inspection 
carried out in accordance with CS465.

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

09 Dec 2022 Closed: Quote received from AECOM to carry out 
further inspections in line with CS465.

13 Dec 2022

Procure AECOM to carry out next phase of 
inspections.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 28 Apr 2023 Awaiting budget approval in March 2023. 24 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1419  
Prefix: OP0036  

Serious tram accident (akin to 
Sandilands) (472)

Due to: inadequate operational and/or maintenance practices,
vandalism or object left in the swept path    
There is a risk that: a tram will overturn    
Resulting in: in injuries or fatalities    

Medium (5:2=10) Liaison with the Police to investigate high vandalism areas.

SYSL carry out driver training, accident investigation and ensure sufficiently competent staff and carry 
out risk assessments.

SYSL carry out regular track patrols and maintenance activities.

System signage reviewed and drop down speeds introduced at high risk areas.

Vigilance device now implemented on the Siemens fleet 

Vigilance device on the Citylink vehicles.

Medium (5:1=5) Investigate the viability of a speed control system 
on the Siemens fleet or incorporate as part of a 
new fleet, subject to the current review of the fleet 
as part of SCR Mass Transit Business Case.

Peter Elliott Peter Elliott 03 May 2024 Closed: Viability 24 Feb 2023

Audit of Supertram Safety Management System 
(SMS) and control measures.

Gerry Masterson Gerry Masterson 30 Mar 2023 RM3 Audit now commenced. Findings due in 
March 2023

23 Feb 2023

Implementation of the recommendations and 
processes adopted by the Light Rail Safety and 
Standards Board where applicable.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 03 May 2024 First 2-monthly review held with ORR, satisfied 
with progress being made.

23 Feb 2023

Work with LRSSB to understand Supertram's risk 
profile in relation to other tram systems, and look at 
continual improvement opportunities

Gerry Masterson Gerry Masterson 01 Apr 2023 Work commenced 24 Feb 2023

Implementation of Rec3 on whole fleet as a speed 
control device.

Tim Taylor Peter Elliott 03 May 2024 Specification work progressing 24 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1421  
Prefix: OP0037  

Tram infrastructure and tram vehicle 
failure (512)

Due to: Due to increased wear and age of assets    
There is a risk that: the tram infrastructure or vehicles will fail  
Resulting in: service disruptions, health and safety incidents
and increased financial exposure.    

High (4:4=16) Annual asset review carried out with 20 assets chosen to check that assets are been maintained in line 
with their maintenance regime. 

Concession Agreement includes clauses regarding operation of the network. 

Details of non-conformances detailed by SYSL Overview Report so we can start to understand problem 
areas and challenge SYSL in order that the necessary repairs are completed. 

SYSL currently monitor and act on obsolescence issues. 

SYSL provide details of their reactive maintenance and planned maintenance performance on a monthly 
basis. 

Medium (3:3=9) Complete negotiations with SYSL with a Transition 
Agreement to address emerging commercial risks 
for a seamless transfer in March 2024. 

Pat Beijer Chris Coleman 30 Jun 2023 Negotiations with Stagecoach via the TA will be 
ongoing during the mobilisation period through to 
March 2024.  Variable review date June 2023

20 Dec 2022

Completion of Mott MacDonald and ATKINS 
condition surveys 

Pat Beijer Peter Elliott 31 Dec 2022 ATKINS vehicle condition survey completed. Mott 
MacDonald surveys completed work in processs of 
writing up.

25 Nov 2022

Progress with new project to replace XVPlus with a 
new Enterprise Asset Management 
System /CMMS. 

Tim Taylor Peter Elliott 30 Mar 2023

Submission of the final Mass Transit renewals bid 
(OBC). 

Pat Beijer Peter Elliott 30 Nov 2023 Submission delayed to November 2023 23 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1440  
Prefix: OP0038  

Injury whilst boarding or alighting a tram 
(495) 

Due to: the tram platform/vehicle interface    
There is a risk that: passengers boarding and alighting may
slip, trip or fall onto or off a vehicle    
Resulting in: injury    

Medium (3:3=9) Adhoc track patrols carried out by SYPTE and any defects raised with SYSL. 

SYSL carry out driver training, accident investigation and ensure sufficiently competent staff and carry 
out risk assessments. 

SYSL carryout maintenance of vehicles and tramstops. 

Review of Safety data on a period by period basis in order to identify trends.

Medium (3:2=6) Audit of Supertram Safety Management System 
(SMS) and control measures

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

01 Dec 2022 Closed: RM3 Audit undertaken by Gerry 
Masterson. Initial Audit looked at Risk 
Assessments and Organisational structure

25 Nov 2022

Review of Safety data on a period by period basis 
in order to identify trends.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2023 Closed: Transferred to a control 27 Jan 2023

Request slip trip and fall risk assessment from 
SYSL

Tim Taylor Gerry Masterson 30 Jun 2023

Rachel Sprigg Reference: 1447  
Prefix: OP0040  

Loss of Rail Grant (418) Due to: DfT reducing/withdraw the Rail Admin Grant of
£1.183m    
There is a risk that: funding is insufficient to cover a number
of station activities such as cleaning and maintenance    
Resulting in: a loss of income to the SYMCA, consequential
budgetary pressures and adverse impact on delivery and
safety.    

Medium (3:3=9) Rail admin grant has been secured for 2022-23 at same level of previous years. 

Standardised funding model for DfT to award this Annualised allocation of rail admin grant from DfT 
(Ongoing for multiple years)

If the Rail grant was to be reduced or stopped we have a list of the service that would be affected and 
how these would impact rail users, stakeholders and staff and also how these could be addressed.

Medium (3:2=6) No further action at this point. Rachel Sprigg Rachel Sprigg 01 Apr 2023

Include in risk quantification of amount of grant at 
risk after discussion with SYMCA finance team 

Rachel Sprigg Rachel Sprigg 31 Mar 2023 Meeting to be arranged with the finance team 06 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1453  
Prefix: OP0043  

Disruption to Supertram operations as a 
result of extreme weather (538)

Due to: climate change and therefore the increase in extreme
weather events    
There is a risk that: there will be increased disruption of the
operation of the Supertram network    
Resulting in: poor public transport service, lower patronage,
increased costs for maintenance and repair.    

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

System was built during the 1990's so the infrastructure is relatively new and climate change was an 
emerging issue. 

Continued liaison with Stakeholders (e.g. Network Rail, SCC) to look at opportunities to input into wider 
climate change mitigations they may be planning. 

Medium (2:4=8) Existing piece of work looking at River Don bridge, 
an asset previously impacted by flooding, to be 
completed. 

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

01 Dec 2022 Closed: AECOM Report Completed. 29 Nov 2022

SCR Mass Transit Renewal to act on the advice 
from the infrastructure advisors on suitable 
mitigation and to design those in to any renewals 
package. 

Tim Taylor Peter Elliott 28 Apr 2023 Advisors work delayed 23 Feb 2023

Infrastructure advisor to undertake a 
comprehensive review of the network to look at 
climate change impacts. 

Pat Beijer Peter Elliott 02 Jan 2023

Continued liaison with Stakeholders (e.g. Network 
Rail, SCC) to look at opportunities to input into 
wider climate change mitigations they may be 
planning. 

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 02 Jan 2023 Closed: Transfer to control 27 Jan 2023

Continued liaison with Stakeholders (e.g. Network 
Rail, SCC) to look at opportunities to input into 
wider climate change mitigations they may be 
planning. 

Christopher 
Hopkinson

Christopher 
Hopkinson

02 Jan 2023 Closed: Duplication 25 Nov 2022

AECOM to present findings of the River Don 
Bridge report to SYSL and SYMCA.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 28 Apr 2023 Still awaiting details of report from AECOM 24 Feb 2023

Philip Burgin Reference: 1495  
Prefix: OP0050  

Woodbourn Tunnel (531) Due to: the structural stability of Woodbourn Tunnel    
There is a risk that: SYMCA could be held liable for the partial
or full collapse of the tunnel    
Resulting in: unbudgeted costs, harm to reputation and
prosecution.    

Medium (5:2=10) SCC's contractor, (Amey) monitoring the bridge and Public Transport Project Delivery Team are in 
regular liaison with SCC.

Medium (4:2=8) A report is due to come to the Public Transport 
Director Team meeting on 15 June to follow up on 
the technical assessment action. New actions may 
arise thereafter.

Pat Beijer Pat Beijer 15 Jun 2022 Closed: A report was submitted to the PTT meeting 
of 15 June 2022 and agreed to progress a project 
to infill the tunnel to mitigate the risk completely

01 Dec 2022

There is an active project underway to infill the 
tunnel with concrete, removing the risk of any 
potential collapse. This is due to start in May 2023, 
with a proposed completion date of August 2023

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 31 Aug 2023 Project established and project plan in place 04 Jan 2023

Health & Safety Risks over a residual score of 5

P
age 216



Owner Identifier Title Cause and Effects Inherent Priority Controls

Detail

Residual Priority Actions

Detail Owner Assignee Variable Target Last Update Text Last Update Date

Tim Taylor Reference: 1513  
Prefix: OP0055  

Road Traffic Collision (489) Due to: trams operating as part of the regions public transport
system    
There is a risk that: a collision between a tram and member of
the public, a collision between a tram and a road vehicle at a
crossing, a collision between a tram and a vehicle in the road
section and a collision between a tram and a cyclist could
occur    
Resulting in: minor, moderate or serious injury (who is liable
here?)    

High (5:4=20) SYSL and SYPTE liaise with Sheffield CC as Highway Authority to review accident statistics to identify 
key hotspots and understand where additional controls could be implemented

SYSL carry out driver training, accident investigation and ensure sufficiently competent staff.

Continued liason with SCC and partners through the MoU meetings to identify hotspot areas and look to 
mitigate issues where achievable.

Look at opportunities to design out risk where possible through CRSTS and Mass Transit renewals 
(OBC)

Medium (5:2=10) Continued liason with SCC and partners through 
the MoU meetings to identify hotspot areas and 
look to mitigate issues where achievable.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Transfer to control 27 Jan 2023

Look at opportunities to design out risk where 
possible through CRSTS and Mass Transit 
renewals (OBC)

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 31 Dec 2022 Closed: Transferred to control 27 Jan 2023

Work with the Light Rail Safety and standards 
Board (LRSSB) to identify opportunities for better 
collaboration between the LRSSB and Highway 
Authorities.

Tim Taylor Tim Taylor 28 Apr 2023 Awaiting appointment of Tram Concession 
Manager recruitment to progress.

27 Jan 2023

Jeremy Kemp Reference: 1516  
Prefix: OP0056  

Member of the public coming into 
contact with a moving vehicle on 
SYMCA property (483)

Due to: coming into contact with a moving vehicle on SYMCA
property    
There is a risk that: a member of the public may be injured    
Resulting in: legal action    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

A programme to install fixed speed ANPR at Barnsley Interchange has now been completed. 

Actively review compliance with the general conditions of use following up on any violations identified

Additional metal barriers have been installed at Sheffield Interchange on one of the crossing points from 
the main concourse building to C platform to try encourage customers to stick to the designated crossing 
points. 

Audible warning message triggered by a sensor at the crossing of A platform from the concourse 
building (Sheffield Interchange only) 

Public Transport operators abide by SYMCA's general conditions of use designed to ensure the safe 
passage of the travelling public. 

Site Managers carry out speed checks on interchange vehicles using a speed radar gun, this radar gun 
is shared around sites on a four week rota, Any vehicle that is exceeding 13 mph the Customer Service 
Manager will send the operator a speeding violation notice which will give details of the offending vehicle 
allowing the operator to carry out appropriate action

SYMCA has customer wayfarer signage in place at all sites to identify safe walking routes. 

Medium (5:2=10) the installation of ANPR is currently in progress for  
Rotherham interchange and Meadowhall in 
2022/23.

Jeremy Kemp Jeremy Kemp 30 Apr 2023

the installation of ANPR at Sheffield Interchange in 
2023/2024

Jeremy Kemp Jeremy Kemp 30 Apr 2024

Tim Taylor Reference: 1587  
Prefix: OP0071  

Travel pass fraud challenge leads to 
assault (496)

Due to: unauthorised travel passes in circulation    
There is a risk that: challenge by operator staff i.e. conductors
is met with aggression    
Resulting in: verbal and physical assault    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

processes in place to manage replacement card process.

SYSL carry out training to avoid conflict, accident investigation and ensure sufficiently competent staff 
and carry out risk assessments.

Medium (4:2=8) To identify opportunities to improve safety through 
the SCR Mass Transit renewals project.

Peter Elliott Peter Elliott 30 Nov 2023 Delay in OBC process, now due for completion in 
November 2023.

23 Feb 2023

Tighten up procedures regarding the replacement 
of lost or damaged passes to avoid unauthorised 
passes entering circulation.

Suzanne 
Hutchinson

Suzanne 
Hutchinson

30 Jun 2023 Work to be incorporated in to retail decisions for 
tram concession end.

23 Feb 2023

Tim Taylor Reference: 1617  
Prefix: OP0076  

Integration changes to the management 
of Health and Safety (525)

Due to: Integration of SYMCA and SYPTE and the transfers
of H&S accountability to the SYMCA Management Structure  
There is a risk that: management structures are unprepared    
Resulting in: an uncontrolled manner and without necessary
controls or processes to reflect the increase in H&S statutory
responsibilities on inheriting extensive customer-facing assets
and services (including a light rail system).    

Medium/High 
(4:3=12)

Establishment of formal integration governance and controls (e.g. work packages, steering groups and 
project plan) allows for better planning of activity and can take in to account other resource pressures 
which arise across the group.

SYPTE has existing H&S policies, governance and reporting in place which can be transferred to MCA 
Group

Medium (3:3=9) Ensure that existing H&S obligations are known, 
described and suitably transferred (including 
overall signatory responsibility of the H&S policy) 
to the MCA and its management structure.

John Dowie John Dowie 31 Mar 2023 Closed: Completed during integration 17 Jan 2023

Jeremy Kemp Reference: 1621  
Prefix: OP0077  

Inability to guarantee safe evacuation of 
interchanges in event of fire (530)

Due to: staffing levels falling below 3 for the service provided
by the current Customer and Cleaning Service provider and a
decrease in staff patrols    
There is a risk that: arson/anti social behaviour could
increase and evacuation may not be effective    
Resulting in: Injury/possible loss of life and reputational
damage to the MCA    

Medium/High 
(5:3=15)

Fire Risk Assessment carried out annually and completion of actions monitored by Health & Safety 
Advisor 

PAT testing at recommended intervals 

Regular safety checks by Customer Service Managers 

A minimum or 3 staff (including SYMCA management as well as 3rd party management) are rota' d to 
ensure security patrols can be carried out at appropriate times and to ensure the safe evacuation of the 
public in the event of a fire

To continue to monitor the rota's and signing in sheets to check if there are a minimum of 3 staff on at 
anyone time, where there are shortfalls appropriate action is taken to mitigate 

Medium (5:2=10) Consideration to be given to flex the current staff 
deployment to ensure there is a minimum or 3 staff 
(including SYMCA management as well as 3rd 
party management) to ensure security patrols can 
be carried out at appropriate times and to ensure 
the safe evacuation of the public in the event of a 
fire.

Jeremy Kemp Jeremy Kemp 01 Apr 2022 Closed: 3 people are rota' d at anyone time 18 Oct 2022

To continue to monitor the rota's and signing in 
sheets to check if there are a minimum of 3 staff on 
at anyone time, where there are shortfalls 
appropriate action is taken to mitigate 

Jeremy Kemp Jeremy Kemp 31 Mar 2023 Closed: on reflection the ongoing monitoring of the 
rota's and signing in sheets is now considered a 
control.

10 Jan 2023

Health and safety are carrying out a full 
assessment on the evacuation processes and 
procedures and a report is to be generated. 

Jeremy Kemp Jeremy Kemp 31 Mar 2023 Awaiting on final report from Health & Safety with 
regards to the evacuation procedures and the 
recommendations suggested. 

10 Jan 2023

Philip Burgin Reference: 1633  
Prefix: OP0080  

Assets - Processes and Controls Due to: the fragmented approach to asset management
across SYMCA    
There is a risk that: inconsistency and weakness in controls    
Resulting in: sub-optimal performance, tenant dissatisfaction
and inefficient reactive expenditure.    

Medium/High 
(4:3=12)

Asset Mgmty Strategy is in place which has been prepared by Turner & Townsend.

Financial valuation report has been prepared by Sanderson Weathrall  

Asset & Lifecycle plans are in place.

A 10 year capital investment plan is in place

Medium (4:2=8) To bring the various reports together to create one 
version, which creates visibility of the strategic 
position and viability of each asset in the group.

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 31 May 2023 Variable date revised due to pending new head of 
service appointment

11 Jan 2023

Gain understanding of the commercial profit and 
loss for each building to make cost benefit decision 
whether to maintain or sell. 

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023 Variable date revised due to pending new head of 
service appointment

11 Jan 2023

Delivery of Actions recorded within this risk register 
will mitigate the risk. 

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023 Variable date revised due to pending new head of 
service appointment

11 Jan 2023

Philip Burgin Reference: 1903  
Prefix: OP0131  

Land & Building Impairment Due to: Due to lack of investment and maintenance
arrangements    
There is a risk that: land and buildings become impaired or
unsuitable for SYMCA's need    
Resulting in: in unavailability or closure, exposure to
additional issues based on H&S, Finance and reputational
challenge.    

Medium/High 
(3:4=12)

Asset management strategy prepared by Turner & Townsend.

Financial Valuation Report  prepared by Sanderson Weatherall

Asset and Lifecycle plan for assets in place for SYMCA occupied buildings

The asset and life cycle plan has been developed to give a 5 year capital investment plan

Medium (3:3=9) Bring the series of reports together and create one 
overall report

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 31 May 2023 Variable date revised due to pending new head of 
service appointment

11 Jan 2023

Gain understanding of the commercial profit and 
loss for each building to understand cost benefits 
whether to retain or sell

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023 Variable date revised due to pending new head of 
service appointment

11 Jan 2023

Philip Burgin Reference: 1940  
Prefix: OP0142  

Compliance with Statue Laws and 
Regulations

Due to: Due to there been no centralised compliance and
assets record system (such as a asset management
database)    
There is a risk that: we may not be able to quickly and
efficiently evidence compliance when challenged    
Resulting in: potential legal action and financial exposure
causing reputational damage    

High (4:4=16) Current information is kept in various spreadsheets and other databases, so although in existence the 
way it is stored is complicated and not available to all in the organisation

Medium (2:3=6) "a. A cost is to be established for a contractor to be 
employed to assess the assets for compliance, 
provide assurance and to make associated 
recommendations.  2 x quotations have been 
received and will form part of Business Planning for 
22/23 budgeting period

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023 Closed: After new assessment of the risk this 
action is no longer applicable and needed

11 Jan 2023

b. Consideration of the costs, above, and
subsequent approval.  Costs reviewed with GS and
agreed to put onto business planning for 22/23 as
c£200k

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 31 Mar 2023 Closed: After new assessment of the risk this 
action is no longer applicable and needed

11 Jan 2023

c. The above leads to tendering, contracting and
ultimately to full delivery by a suitable contractor to
assess all of the MCA assets to provide assurance
on compliance and recommendations for remedial
actions.

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023 Closed: After new assessment of the risk this 
action is no longer applicable and needed

11 Jan 2023

Actively looking to procure a new asset 
management software which will monitor 
compliance and risk rate each building.  This 
software will also future proof the organisation as it 
will ensure we are fully compliant with the new 
Building Safety Act"

Philip Burgin Philip Burgin 30 Jun 2023

Gareth Sutton Reference: 2301  
Prefix: OP0207  

Assets Management Capacity Due to: The imminent exit of Head Of Facilities and Asset
Manager    
There is a risk that: the drive to make improvements to the
operational FM & Asset Management and control of the
commercial aspects of the Estate will stall    
Resulting in: A delay to the achievement of the Strategic
Asset Management Plan, etc    

Medium/High 
(3:5=15)

None evident owner reviewing options available

Existing post holder has reviewed and sent updates for the new JD to Rachael Radford

Medium (3:3=9)

Health & Safety Risks over a residual score of 5

P
age 217



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 25 January 2023
	07i ASRC Matters Arising and Action Log
	Audit, Standards & Risk Committee
	Action Log from 25 January 2023


	8 2021/22 Accounts - External Audit Update
	2021/22 Accounts – External Audit Update
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Summary
	Recommendation(s)  
	List of Appendices Included:  

	08i SYMCA 446GPS(R) LG ARR for March 2023 committee
	08ii SYPTE 446GPS(R) LG ARR for March 2023 committee

	9 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Summary
	Recommendation(s)  
	List of Appendices Included:  
	09i SYMCA Internal Audit Progress Report March 2023
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Introduction & headlines
	Slide 3: 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan progress
	Slide 4: 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan progress
	Slide 5: Appendix 1: Our assurance levels
	Slide 6


	10 Internal Audit Reports
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Summary
	Recommendation(s)  
	List of Appendices Included:  
	10i - App A - Governance
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Headline messages
	Slide 6: Headline messages
	Slide 7: Summary of findings
	Slide 8: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 9: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: Appendix 1: Staff involved and documents reviewed
	Slide 12: Appendix 2: Our assurance levels
	Slide 13: Appendix 2:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 14

	10ii - App B - Risk Management
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Headline messages
	Slide 6: Summary of findings
	Slide 7: Summary of findings
	Slide 8: Summary of findings
	Slide 9: Summary of findings
	Slide 10: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 11: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 12: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 13: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: Appendix 1: Staff involved and documents reviewed
	Slide 16: Appendix 2: Our assurance levels
	Slide 17: Appendix 2:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 18

	10iii - App C - Core Financial Controls
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Headline messages
	Slide 6: Headline messages
	Slide 7: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 8: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 9: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 10: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 11: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 12: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 13: Detailed findings & action plan
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: Appendix 1: Staff involved and documents reviewed
	Slide 16: Appendix 2: Our assurance levels
	Slide 17: Appendix 2:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 18

	10iv - App D - Supplier Resilience Follow Up
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Headline messages
	Slide 6: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 7: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 8: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 9: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 10: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 11: Recommendation Status Summary
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: Appendix 1: Our assurance levels
	Slide 14: Appendix 2:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 15


	11 Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Summary
	Recommendation(s)  
	List of Appendices Included:  
	11i Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report March 2023
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Implementation of recommendations 
	Slide 3: Appendix 1:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 4


	12 Annual Internal Audit Report including Draft Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Summary
	Recommendation(s)  
	List of Appendices Included:  
	12i SYMCA Draft Annual Internal Audit Report and Interim HOIA
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Executive Summary
	Slide 5: Executive Summary – continued
	Slide 6: Responsibilities and audit approach
	Slide 7: Planned audit coverage and output
	Slide 8: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 9: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 10: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 11: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 12: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 13: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 14: 2022/23 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: Appendix 1: Our assurance levels
	Slide 17: Appendix 2:  Our recommendation ratings
	Slide 18


	13 Risk Management
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Executive Summary
	What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?   
	Recommendations  
	Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel
	Background
	2.
	Risk Dashboard
	3.
	Consultation on Proposal 
	4.
	Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision  
	5.
	Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
	6.
	Legal Implications and Advice 
	7.
	Human Resources Implications and Advice
	8.
	Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice
	9.
	Climate Change Implications and Advice
	10.
	Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice
	11.
	Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  
	12.
	List of Appendices Included:  
	13i - App A - Risk Management Dashboard - 13 March 23
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	ADPB84D.tmp
	Is the paper exempt from the press and public?
	Reason why exempt:  
	Has it been included on the Forward Plan of Key Decisions?
	Executive Summary
	What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?   
	Recommendations  
	Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel
	Background
	2.
	Risk Dashboard
	3.
	Consultation on Proposal 
	4.
	Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision  
	5.
	Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
	6.
	Legal Implications and Advice 
	7.
	Human Resources Implications and Advice
	8.
	Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice
	9.
	Climate Change Implications and Advice
	10.
	Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice
	11.
	Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  
	12.
	List of Appendices Included:  

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Dashboard March 23.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	Blank Page
	ADPCE6B.tmp
	Slide Number 1






